2 r=1 ®
i 7=1 74
CHILWWEE

CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRBDIEZERERA A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(MEAESFEEMELNERAT)
Stock Code B #31X5%: 00951




Corporate Profile
RAEN

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited is a leading lead-acid motive battery
manufacturer in the fast growing electric bike market in China. The Group has
been an industry pioneer in mastering the cadmium-free lead-acid battery
formation process (“Enclosed Battery Formation Process”) for many years
and has substantial experience in applying this technique to the production.
The energy conservation, emissions reduction and environmental protection
philosophy is in line with national policies and development.

The Group’s manufacturing and management headquarters is located at
Changxing County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, while other manufacturing
facilities were strategically established in Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang,
Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces. As at 31 December 2012, the annual
production capacity of lead-acid motive batteries of the Group was 90 million
units.

The primary market of the Group features many top electric bike manufacturers.
With respect to the secondary market, as at 31 December 2012, the Group has
a distribution network of 997 exclusive distributors nationwide. The Group has
also commenced the production of lead-acid motive batteries for electric cars
and storage batteries for wind and solar energy as well as production of lithium-ion
batteries.

The Group’s motive battery products are mainly sold under the “CHILWEE (&
)" brand, which was recognized as “Chinese Famous Trademark”. Besides,
the Group has received the “Global Industry Leadership Award” from Frost &
Sullivan, a renowned international accreditation company.
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Enclosed Battery Formation Process
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Corporate Information
RNAEEH

PLACE OF LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
951

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Deng Xihong
Mr. Ng Chi Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Wang Jigiang
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jigiang
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhou Mingming
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

REGISTERED OFFICE

Floor 4, Willow House
Cricket Square

P.O. Box 2804

Grand Cayman
KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 12, Zhizhou Road
Xinxing Industrial Park
Zhicheng, Changxing
Zhejiang Province
China
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 907, Level 9

Fairmont House

8 Cotton Tree Drive

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Construction Bank, Changxing Jie Fang Dong Road
Sub-branch
Bank of China, Changxing County Sub-branch

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe

As to PRC law
Zong Heng Law Firm

As to Cayman Islands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations (China) Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shop 1712-16

17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town,

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chaowei.com.hk
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

BEBHERERAR ([KAAF]) kE
MBAR ([AEE]) MASMH TIIHH
E-

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

2012 2011 Change
—E——F —=——F 2%
RMB’000 (Restated)
AREET T (&&&E75)
Revenue WA 9,559,439 4,932,011 93.8%
Gross profit EF 1,894,760 1,405,995 34.8%
Profit before tax BR B BT AR 752,471 710,881 5.9%
Profit attributable to the owners KRB AELFE
of the Company 496,328 455,338 9.0%
Earnings per share SR AT
- Basic (RMB) —HAKR (AR 0.49 0.45 8.9%
Proposed final dividend per share EERRERE
(RMB) (AR¥TT) 0.148 0.136 8.8%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “year under review”),
the Group’s audited profit attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB496.3 million. Basic earnings per share
was RMBO0.49.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 3
June 2013 to 6 June 2013 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company expected to be held on 6 June
2013 (the “Annual General Meeting”), during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending the Annual General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2013.

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company has
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.148
per share for shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 17 June 2013. The Register of Members
will be closed from 13 June 2013 to 17 June 2013, both days inclusive,
and the proposed final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid
on 21 June 2013. The payment of dividends shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. In order
to be qualified for the proposed dividend, shareholders should deliver
share certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Service
Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11
June 2013.
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Revenue (RMB’000)
KA (AR¥FT)

4,932,011

%
9,559,439 +93-8

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the Company (RMB’000)
AARFEEARERE (AR¥FT)

455,338

%
496,328 +9l0

Total Assets (RMB’000)
BEE (AR¥TT)

4,521,196

Revenue by Markets
WAERTSE D
2011 2012

{{44.8% 55.2%

@ Primary Market — 15
@® Secondary Market —#:Hi5

Annual Report 2012 £ #§




Awards and Milestones

RENERER

January — A

e Changxing Zhongcheng Power
commenced construction of
new production facility

REFKERFAREZHEER
i

B_ME_ 4

August N\ A

* Named one of the “2012 China Top 500 Private Enterprises”

BE[2012FEFBERE %5005 |

* Named one of the “2012 China Top 500 Private Manufacturing

Enterprises”

BE20126FFHRE dEREE5005 |

April B A

Honoured as “China’s Most
Influential Enterprise in Industry”
RETESRIXHAFEILE]
Signed MOU with Xinhe County
Government of Hebei Province to
construct new production facilities
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May & A

Named one of the “Top 10
Enterprises of Battery Industry
in China Light Industries”
BREHERIXESHITETR
¥ | B

Honoured as the “Chinese
Famous Trademark”

ElTEBEER]RAE

September hA

e Completion of issue of RMB633.0 million convertible

BITARMKE IR A MRES



June <A

RE[EXATEGHEMEER | BR

KEHEBRTERRERE | BR

November +—A

¢ Accredited by Frost & Sullivan:
— Global Industry Leadership Award
— Growth Award
— Innovation Award

“¥Frost & Sullivan2E :
- TEZREEER

- HHERR

- ElAIFE

* Honoured as the “Outstanding Battery Manufacturer in China”

e Named one of the “Top 100 Enterprises in China Light Industry”

F RS TR T

SiskaEié  moabdans

Zo=Z8 AN

Named one of the “Top 100
Manufacturing Enterprises in
Zhejiang Province”

REWIAREETR]
Awarded the “Miracle of the Year”
and “Most Promising Award”

among the “2012 Top 100 Hong
Kong Shares”

R [20125F B R10058 | 2 [ FHF
RBIMHEEHE]

July £A

e Henan Chaowei acquired 85%
equity interests of Qinyang Libiao
0 A R 2 R W O 5 ST 1R85 % Y
FEER

e Commenced construction of
Hebei production facilities with a
total area of 110,000 sg.m
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December +=A

¢ Awarded the “2012 China Top
50 Most Competitive Private
Enterprises”

BE2012FEhEIRECESEH
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEBE

Total Sales Volume #HE=

86,790,000

Units of batteries &

Compared to 2011
R_T——F

+102.4°
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The year 2012 was marked by both challenges and opportunities and we have been facing \
a competitive market. Nevertheless, consolidation opportunities arose as a result of
favourable policies of the PRC Government to encourage the elimination of technologically
obsolete production capacities. By continuously expanding production capacity and our
distribution network, we endeavoured to strengthen our industry-leading position and
achieved fruitful results in the past year.

“E-CHEHARERGERERAKBIFHN —F - ERFRFHNTERER FEBFNEE
FARMERERANFERFTRNESEHR  RMATREZ - FRHIZEHINTERLEN - &
RAERLBBARDHERE  BUSBEAR -

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to present the $A%Tﬁ?€$@ﬂ%$§ﬁk%ﬁ§z$@ﬂ
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) forthe MEMBAR ([ANE®]) HE-_T—=
year ended 31 December 2012. FH+—A=+— Elﬂ:ifziiﬁi 0

oo

The year 2012 was marked by both challenges and opportunities and =% — — F ¥ A& B R S P B KB Y
we have been facing a competitive market. Nevertheless, consolidation 7FH—4F - BHEHRFHZNOTHRER
opportunities arose as a result of favourable policies of the PRC 1 Bl E T &Y &% B Y S B il % 18 722 s 7 47 R
Government to encourage the elimination of technologically obsolete KA KB A K - RFEBE—FEHT
production capacities. By continuously expanding production capacity — Z[E B8 & HITEB LM - SEEFERL
and our distribution network, we endeavoured to strengthen our HREBIAE D HEMLE » SLBERE -
industry-leading position and achieved fruitful results in the past year.

Favourable macro-economic factors support demand ZEAE HEES

In recent years, the PRC economy has been growing rapidly with an 1% - FREAESRERR - BMANEELE
average annual growth rate of the gross domestic product of 8%. KT F LR FIiES ° Hﬂv WRE R
Meanwhile, driven by the increasing income level and purchasing H®IWAKFEFMBE HTHIES @ HEA D

power, the demand of urban residents for personal travelling vehicles T T EMEZBKINA IR o — « Z&HH
has been rising. The increasingly heavy traffic caused by the rapid W%%ﬁﬁﬁ{b%mﬁ’\]?&ﬁ%%% LA B
urbanisation of first- and second-tier cities and the underdeveloped = @%?ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?_ﬁ%ﬁ’\]@é‘—iﬁ?ﬁ/\uuﬁ
public transportation systems in third- and fourth-tier cities have made 7( BEHETERN - FENES - F
the highly efficient and user-friendly advantages of electric bikes more  #H Tﬁﬂ’]?ﬂ%%%%@ﬁ:ﬁﬁ@iﬁz
appealing. Electric bikes’ average selling price and usage cost were — ' FREKXKAZENS Z—  MAHERE

only one-third and one-eighth of the respective costs of motorcycles. TEBKEZ SR - FEUHBET - EFHATT
- Besides, electric bikes do not cause direct environmental pollution. B FE LK & BIEZ A QA A #EHER
ence, electric bikes have become vehicles conveniently available to BT E - EHETEMN L LIIRTSYHE
jeneral public across the PRC. The increasing popularity of electric S E) sk - B MGk A &) N BT
sﬁmulated the market demand for batteries, which in turn  BJZRE o b E[+ A BET K
s significantly accelerated the development of the electric motive  FFANIRHE#E RTRE R HE T - BIR &9 A 47 K
indust tion, a d'ere\ng to the 12th Five-Year Plan, the R RIREEHTRIARE N BT IH%
st energy saving and RATERAIERE S -
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEBE

Industry leader in Enclosed Battery Formation Process in
terms of capacity proportion

For the lead-acid motive battery industry within which we are operating,
the entry barriers have been further elevated by the continuous
implementation of the reform policies during 2012. The “Entry
Requirements of the Lead-acid Battery Industry” ( {$5BAE MiTH%E
A&EHD ) (the “Entry Requirements”) require the traditional cadmium
battery production process to be completely eliminated by the end of
2013. As a result, the obsolete production capacity of the industry has
been gradually eliminated. The Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology (“MIIT”) of the PRC published two lists of lead-acid battery
enterprises with obsolete capacity required to be shut down. After
several rounds of large-scale industry consolidation, only around
200 enterprises remained in operation in the PRC. The increasing
concentration of the industry provided excellent opportunities for
development to the leading enterprises in the industry, including the
Group. We have been complying to the standards of environmental
assessment by actively promoting cadmium-free production. As such,
the stringent environmental protection policies targeting the lead-acid
battery industry implemented by the Government in recent years
actually have given us the opportunity to demonstrate our technological
superiority. The Group has been an industry pioneer in mastering the
cadmium-free lead-acid battery formation process (“Enclosed Battery
Formation Process”) for many years and has substantial experience in
applying this technique to our production. As at 31 December 2012,
83% of our production capacity has been implementing the Enclosed
Battery Formation Process, the highest proportion within the industry.
Meanwhile, we believe that we can increase the percentage to 100%
by the end of 2013, providing us then with an even more remarkable
technological superiority.

Capacity expansion leads to steady performance

During the year under review, the Group has completed the construction
of two new production facilities and three acquisition and mergers,
which have successfully expanded our production capacity of lead-
acid batteries from 56 million units of last year to 90 million units.
Supported by strong domestic market demand, we have enjoyed
outstanding results with a notable growth during the year under review.
As at 31 December 2012, our total product sales volume increased
to 86.75 million units of batteries, representing a growth of 102.4%
as compared to 2011. The further increase in sales was mitigated by
the persistent pressures on the selling prices in the lead-acid motive
battery market in the PRC, especially since the fourth quarter in 2012,
as a result of fierce competition in the industry by leading market
players in an attempt to increase market share. Total revenue amounted
to RMB9,559.4 million, representing an increase of 93.8% as compared
to last year. Gross profit and profit attributable to the owners of the

14 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited R E) HIZRER 2 7
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Company increased by 34.8% and 9.0% to RMB1,894.8 million and
RMB496.3 million, respectively. Basic earnings per share increased
by 8.9% to RMBO0.49. To reward our shareholders for their continuous
support, the Board is pleased to declare a final dividend of RMB0.148
per share for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Moving ahead and strive to soar

Forging ahead, to capture the favourable market dynamics and
maintain future business growth, we will adjust our strategies in a timely
manner in order to reinforce our leading position in the industry in
consistent with our established long-term development objectives. We
will further enhance the operational efficiency and increase production
capacity so as to meet the strong market demand by continuously
identifying potential acquisition opportunities and actively enhancing
our existing facilities and improving our technological standards.
Meanwhile, we will endeavour to strengthen the relationship with our
partners in both primary and secondary markets, in order to expand our
market coverage and bolster brand awareness. In addition, in view of
the encouraging prospects of the new-energy automotive industry, the
Group is making further efforts to develop more advanced technologies
as well as new products to better tap new market opportunities in the
future.

Appreciation

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
management and fellow colleagues for their dedicated work and
valuable contributions throughout the year. | would also like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our customers,
suppliers, business partners and shareholders for their continuous
support and trust. We believe that we are well positioned to become the
world’s largest lead-acid motive battery and storage battery supplier.
We will be fully committed to our overall business development strategy,
and to seize every emerging business opportunity so that we could
provide solid returns to our shareholders.

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

24 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWE DN

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and sale of lead-
acid motive batteries and other related products under the “Chaowei
(ChilWee)” trademark, a Chinese Famous Trademark. The Group’s
products are principally utilised in electric bikes, electric vehicles
and special-purpose electric vehicles. In addition to lead-acid motive
batteries, the Group also produces and launches lead-acid storage
batteries, as well as lithium-ion batteries. As one of the few enterprises
which has successfully adopted the Enclosed Battery Formation
Process in large scale lead-acid battery production, the Group strongly
advocates green production and provides a good role model for the
industry.

MARKET OVERVIEW

Entry Requirements accelerate industry consolidation and
benefit leading enterprises

With the view to upgrade the industry, protect the environment and
enhance comprehensive efficiency in utilisation of resources, the MIIT
and the Ministry of Environmental Protection (“MEP”) of the PRC jointly
promulgated the Entry Requirements, which officially came into effect
on 1 July 2012. By raising the entry barriers of the industry, the Entry
Requirements strictly ordered operations engaged in the production
of lead-acid batteries and lead-based components with sub-standard
cadmium or arsenic content to be shut down by the end of 2013.
In order to effectively enforce the Entry Requirements, MIIT and MEP
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issued the “Provisional Measures on the Announcement of Entry into
the Lead-acid Battery Industry” ( (SREEMITEEA NS E R EITH
7£) ) in December of the same year to further bolster supervision
over the restriction of heavy metal pollutants in the battery industry.
Hence, cadmium consumption of domestic battery industry is expected
to reduce by 70% from 2010 to 2015. The lead-acid motive battery
manufacturers were also required to comply with national environmental
standards in respect to clean production, energy conservation and
emissions reduction.

Currently, it is estimated that less than 50% of industry’s production
capacity adopted the Enclosed Battery Formation Process. Following
the promulgation of the Entry Requirements, only around 218 lead-acid
battery manufacturers were still eligible to carry on production as at the
end of 2012. Against this backdrop, a considerable amount of obsolete
production capacity is to be eventually eliminated, resulting in a
higher concentration of the industry, which could bring unprecedented
opportunities for consolidation to the Group as a leading industry
player.
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Vigourous development of Primary and Secondary Markets

In recent years, continuous urbanisation in China has allowed
environmentally friendly electric bikes with competitive prices to enjoy
a more remarkable advantage, particularly in third- and fourth-tier cities
as well as rural areas in China where the market of electric bikes is
growing dynamically and consumption generally keeps increasing.
The usage of electric bikes as a substitute for motorcycles and
bicycles has become increasingly common. Moreover, electric bikes
are safer, more efficient and convenient, therefore are suitable for
more than approximately 70% of the national population with a wide
range of applications. With the surging popularity of electric bikes,
it is estimated that the accumulated scale of the market reached
approximately 160 million units in 2012. Thanks to a rising demand
for motive batteries used in new electric bikes (the “Primary Market”),
the motive battery market has huge development potential. The motive
battery replacement market (the “Secondary Market”) is expected to
be above 250 million units by the end of 2013, further driving battery
replacement needs in the Secondary Market and providing tailwind to
push the development of the motive battery market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sophisticated techniques in Enclosed Battery Formation
Process display the Group’s technical prowess

Under the policy of industry consolidation, the entry barriers of the
lead-acid motive battery industry have been further raised. Battery
manufacturers within the industry are required to eliminate cadmium
according to the Entry Requirements promulgated by the Government,
and the Group has well prepared for such requirements. Stricter
regulatory requirements have imposed greater challenges to industry
players, but have also brought consolidation opportunities to leading
enterprises to increase their market share. With a higher concentration
of the industry, leading enterprises such as the Group can enjoy
excellent opportunities for development.
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As one of the leading industry players, the Group has foreseen such
opportunities, researched and utilised the Enclosed Battery Formation
Process in its production since 2004, which currently makes it one of the
few lead-acid motive battery manufacturers in China with sophisticated
techniques in utilising multi-stage Enclosed Battery Formation Process
for cadmium-free lead-acid batteries in large scale production. As at
31 December 2012, the Group has implemented the Enclosed Battery
Formation Process in approximately 83% of its production capacity,
representing a substantial increase from 57% of the previous year. Its
energy conservation, emissions reduction and environmental protection
philosophy has been in line with national development strategy. In
order to fully achieve environmentally friendly production, the Group
planned to complete conversion of its entire production lines to the
Enclosed Battery Formation Process and implement 100% cadmium-
free production by the end of 2013 so as to fully comply with the
country’s Entry Requirements. As it is estimated that only a portion of
the industry’s production capacity is currently complying with the new
Entry Requirements, the Group then will leverage its leading technical
advantage to the full extent.

Capacity Proportion of Enclosed
Battery Formation Process of the Group
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Comparison of Enclosed Battery Formation Process and
Traditional Battery Formation Process
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Continuous expansion of the Primary Market thanks to rising
market demand

Driven by favourable factors such as high oil price, strong demand of
new sales of electric bikes and industry consolidation, sales of lead-
acid motive batteries in China increased by 20% on a year-on-year
basis in each of the past three years. Leveraging the momentum in
the growing Primary Market, for the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group’s revenue generated from the Primary Market grew 58.9% to
RMB3,454.0 million as compared to 2011 with sales volume increasing
by 55.4% to 31.4 million units of batteries. The Group has maintained a
solid relationship with leading domestic manufacturers of electric bikes,
including Jiangsu Yadea, Zhejiang Luyuan, Shandong Byvin, Shanghai
Lima and Tianjin EverMaster.

Seizing growth potential in the Secondary Market with
nationwide distribution network

In order to expand its market share in the Secondary Market, the Group
has established a nationwide distribution network covering every
province and region across the country. The Group also restructured
that network into 24 areas to improve overall management efficiency.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 997 independent exclusive
distributors, as compared to 675 in last year. To enhance the overall
operating capability of its agents and terminal sales, the Company
provided regular training for its distributors to enrich their product
knowledge and equip them with the latest industry information. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, revenue generated from the Secondary
Market amounted to approximately RMB5,896.9 million, representing an
increase of 120.1% as compared to last year with sales volume growing
by 144.3% to 55.3 million units of batteries.
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Nationwide Distribution Network
PHRAREEERSERE

 Number of distributors in each region as at 31 December 2012
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Number of Independent Exclusive Distributors in the
Secondary Market
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Brand recognition and service quality are crucial to consolidating the
existing customer base and expanding new customers. In order to
enhance brand awareness, the Group has continued to engage Mr
Donnie Yen, a famous international actor, as the brand spokesperson
for the Group during the year under review. The popularity and charm
of the spokesperson have effectively enhanced the Group’s brand
reputation. Moreover, the Group has proactively strengthened its
brand promotion by placing more nationwide advertisements in order
to attract a broader range of consumers. Meanwhile, the Group has
also set up Chaowei retail and service outlets in all provinces across
China while expanding its sales network to secure more customers
from the Secondary Market. In respect of service improvement, the
Group has adopted product identification, identity verification and a
service system for its customers to easily verify product authenticity
via the internet.
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Motive batteries for new-energy vehicles and special-purpose
electric vehicles

The “2020 Development Plan of Energy-saving and New-energy
Automotive Industry” ( ( ZZE_ZFEEEEMER TEELLEERE) )
promulgated by the State Council in July 2012, aims for sales of new-
energy vehicles to exceed more than 5 million units by 2020, thereby
stimulating the development of the environmentally-friendly battery
industry.

To capitalise on these business opportunities, the Group has closely
collaborated with major automobile manufactures in China during the
year under review and planned to work with domestic manufacturers of
electric vehicles on research and development projects, among which
a high performance lead-acid storage battery for electric vehicles has
passed product appraisal and has already commenced production.
Being environmentally friendly, user-friendly, durable as well as low
priced, electric vehicles can be widely applied in various ways.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s sales revenue
from electric cars battery and special-purpose electric cars battery
increased significantly by 331.6% to RMB734.1 million. This included
electric vehicles and other special-purpose vehicles, such as electric
golf carts, electric tourist coaches, electric forklifts, electric tricycles,
and electric police patrol cars, etc.
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Storage batteries and lithium-ion batteries

For the storage battery business, revenue of the Group for the year
under review increased by 207.3% to RMB42.8 million. The lead-
acid storage batteries developed by the Group can be utilised in
solar power grids and wind farms. The Group has built up a strong
technical foundation for storage batteries which plays a vital part in
the development of the new energy business. The Group’s revenue of
lithium-ion batteries was RMB30.5 million, representing an increase of
5,308.7% compared to 2011. To further improve its technical capability,
the Group has actively bolstered its research and development
capabilities. Chaowei Research Institute has been selected as a pilot
unit for the “New Pilot Scheme on Technology Innovation of the Pure
B EERMAFTHETIE) in Zhejiang

Province. Currently, the Group has introduced different kinds of lithium-

Electric Car Industry” (4%

ion batteries for electric bikes.
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Strategic planning of continuous capacity and volume
expansion

As China’s demand for lead-acid motive batteries is increasing, and
due to the effect of the regulatory measures recently implemented by
the PRC Government on most of the battery manufacturers, the Group
has taken a proactive stance to further expand its production capacity
in order to meet market demand by upgrading its existing production
facilities and building new production lines during the year under
review. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has set up production
bases in six provinces, namely Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang,
Anhui and Jiangxi. The annual production capacity of lead-acid motive
batteries rose from 56 million units to 90 million units, representing an
increase of 60.7%. Moreover, the Group has commenced constructing
new production facilities in Changxing County, Zhejiang Province
and Xinhe County, Hebei Province since January and July 2012
respectively, which would significantly increase production capacity
upon completion.

To accelerate capacity expansion, in addition to organic growth, the
Group has also proactively initiated strategic mergers and acquisitions.
In April and December 2012, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd. and a 28% equity interest
in Zhejiang Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd. to expand production capacity.
Furthermore, upon the successful acquisition of an 85% equity interest
in Qinyang Libiao Plate Co., Ltd. (“Qinyang Libiao”) from Henan Yifeng
Electric Bikes Manufacturing Co., Ltd. by Henan Chaowei, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in July 2012, Qinyang Libiao
became an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group which
will supply quality electrode plate dividing paper to the Group. This
acquisition is expected to help the Group to enhance battery quality
and facilitate business development while further reducing production
costs.
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Market-Oriented Strategic Layout of Production Bases
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Continuously enhancing research and development
capability highlights technological superiority

The Group’s strong research and development capability has not only
strengthened its product competitiveness, but also placed it at the
forefront of the industry. Chaowei Research Institute has already been
upgraded to a provincial-level corporate research institute in Zhejiang
Province. In addition, the Group has also set up a post-doctoral work
station, a provincial-level corporate research institute, a provincial
high and new technology research and development centre and an
enterprise technology centre. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
possessed a total of 323 patents, including 26 invention patents.
Besides, the Group’s research and development team comprised 608
(2011: 410) staff at that time. The Group has also actively participated
in provincial key projects of technology innovation and the National
Torch Program by the Ministry of Science and Technology of China,
and was devoted to develop more products for provincial applications
as well as key national new products. With respect to research and

development, the Group’s expense during the year under review
reached RMB314.4 million, an increase of 72.1% compared to 2011,
representing 3.3% of the total revenue.

During the year under review, the Group has attained various research
achievements in lead-acid motive batteries, lead-acid storage batteries
and lithium-ion batteries and some have passed inspection and
commenced production. The Group has also worked closely with
various research and academic institutions in China, including Fuzhou
University, Harbin University, and Xiamen University, etc, in order to
enhance the research and development capability of both parties, and
co-develop new products.
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Corporate responsibility

Over the years, the Group has strived to set sustainable development
as the enterprise’s long term objective, and is committed to become
an enterprise shouldering its social responsibility.

The Group has rigidly complied with national environmental protection
standards, and has obtained ISO 14001 environmental system and
ISO9001 quality control system certifications. The Group has also
implemented plans to adopt the Enclosed Battery Formation Process
comprehensively by the end of 2013 with the aim of transforming
into a “Green Enterprise”. Besides, the Group has established an
environmental protection inspection team, comprised of more than
40 staff to regularly inspect production bases and report to the
management with recommendations in a timely manner.

Regarding investor relations, the Group is dedicated to enhancing the
transparency of the enterprise and maintaining close communication
with investors by actively participating in investor conferences across
China and overseas, as well as regularly holding analyst meetings.
The Group intends to organise more on-site visits for investors so as
to strengthen their understanding of its operations.

In order to fulfil its social responsibility, the Group has actively
participated in policy discussions with relevant associations in the
industry, and was honored with an appointment by China Battery
Industry Association as the “Vice-President Entity of the sixth Session
of its Executive Committee”. Meanwhile, the Group has also reached
out to help all sectors of the society, including donations to the agents
who suffered from severe iliness, expressing solicitude to frontline staff
and caring for children with serious illnesses. The Group supports and
contributes to society through practical actions.

dhrﬁl'v"%‘\"'h't

30 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited iR &) hiZRBR A 7

¥EEME
ZELR  AEERFBUAKEZRAD
ENRRER  BUOIKA—ZXBEHEGERE
R -

RRTENE  ARERBETERNE
IRIERIERERE - W ITRBBISO14001
B R R EMISO9001 i & Bo 12 88 KR

T 2 Rt
c AREBENABEE_ZT—=FEERS

I& iR

EERAK TENEERN - BREKRR
%EIJ,\EE’J AR - sl - REEK

—BIRRIREHR - RAEBB40BRETHA
m ﬁi?%mﬁm%ﬁﬁ NS SIEN
BEERSENEREEEE -

BEEBEHE  AEERNERELE
AE - REERAENED  NEESE
Bl SNOIR B A B R RS AT &
HE o ARBEESRINBELSBEE
MEE  AMEREEHCRBENR
o

Ee¥OMeEETE  AREER2H
TEANEBBENRER®  KRPTEE
IXEmedRPRELIXRHEENE
BEQRIEEREMN] - AR AEEK

TRALEEARZREHENZTF - B
[ 7 & B E KO IR R B 3K
rRAZERTE
fEtE -

+ R B AR EX
E NERTHXFEE




FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB9,559,439,000 in 2012, rising by 93.8% over RMB4,932,011,000
for 2011, which was primarily attributable to the growth in sales volume
of lead-acid motive batteries as a result of the Group’s gain in market
share. The Group sold approximately 86.75 million units of batteries
during 2012 (2011: 42.87 million units of batteries).

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit amounted to RMB1,894,760,000 in 2012,
an increase of 34.8% over RMB1,405,995,000 for 2011, which was
primarily attributed to a higher sales volume of lead-acid motive
batteries. The gross profit margin in 2012 was 19.8% (2011: 28.5%)
and the decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase
in rebates given to customers as a result of fierce competition in the
second half, especially in the fourth quarter of the year under review.

Other income

The Group’s other income for the year amounted to RMB49,488,000
in 2012, representing an increase of 85.3% from other income in
2011, which was mainly due to increase in government grants to
RMB32,949,000 (2011: RMB19,666,000) and interest income to
RMB10,796,000 (2011: RMB4,207,000).

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses for 2012 amounted to
RMB396,653,000, representing an increase of approximately 68.0%
over RMB236,160,000 for 2011, which was primarily attributed to the
increase in advertising expenses and transportation costs arising
from increase in sales volume. For 2012, the distribution and selling
expenses as a percentage of revenue were 4.1% (2011: 4.8%).
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB339,343,000 in 2012,
representing a rise of 52.2% over RMB222,928,000 for 2011, which
was primarily attributed to increases in staff expenses, depreciation
and professional fees. The increase in administrative expenses was in
line with the Group’s business expansion.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses amounted to RMB314,449,000
in 2012, representing a substantial increase of 72.1% over
RMB182,723,000 for 2011, which was primarily attributed to the
increases in the cost of research materials and staff as a result of
a greater number of research projects being undertaken, including
research and development in new products.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 111.9% from RMB42,971,000
for 2011 to RMB91,044,000 for 2012, which was primarily attributed
to 1) an increase in interest expenses on our bank borrowings as a
result of the increase in our average outstanding bank borrowings, and
2) incurrence of interest expenses on the convertible bonds issued in
September 2012.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, our profit before tax increased by 5.9% to
RMB752,471,000 in 2012 (2011: RMB710,881,000).

Taxation

The Group’s income tax expenses for the year increased by 9.5% to
RMB132,537,000 in 2012 (2011: RMB121,058,000). The increase in
taxation was mainly in line with the increase in operating profit. The
higher effective tax rate of 17.6% in 2012 (2011: 17.0%) was mainly
due to loss of an associate which reduces the Group’s profit base for
calculation of effective tax rate.
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Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

In 2012, profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
RMB496,328,000, representing a rise of 9.0% over RMB455,338,000
for 2011.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets of
RMB615,338,000 (31 December 2011: RMB691,394,000) of which
cash and bank balances were RMB905,402,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB844,750,000). Total borrowings and convertible bonds were
RMB2,311,935,000 (31 December 2011: RMB1,250,000,000), which
were mainly used to finance the purchases and daily operations
of the Group. They were denominated in RMB or HKD, of which
RMB1,780,935,000 bore interest at fixed rates and RMB1,512,135,000
were repayable within one year. The Group adopts centralised financing
and treasury policies in order to ensure that the Group’s funding is
utilised efficiently and monitors its interest rate risk in a conservative
manner.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.2 (31 December 2011: 1.3) and gearing ratio
(total borrowings/total assets) was 32.5% (31 December 2011: 27.6%).
The Group had sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements. This strong cash
position has enabled the Group to explore investment and business
development opportunities to expand its market share in China.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group’s operations are mainly conducted in China and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in Renminbi, the
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Group’s operating
cash flow and liquidity is not subject to significant foreign exchange
rate risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWE DN

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2012 (31 December 2011: nil).

Pledge of assets

At the end of the year under review, certain of the Group’s assets
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at the

HREE

RZZE——F+_A=+—8 ~EEH
BEMRNEASIAREARE (ZE——F+=A

=+—H:8|)-

BEEEM

REBEFEARE  AEEERETEE
ERBITETARBERITREEN - ©
EREMHEERE  ARECEREEN

end of each of the reporting periods is as follows: BIEEENT
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETTT
Buildings BF 145,667 103,554
Land use rights + b {5 B 48,127 81,416
Trade receivables FEWE 2 BR SR 143,900 -
Restricted bank deposits ZR&HISRITIE K 201,289 150,926
Capital commitments EARERE
2012 2011
—E-—CfF —ET——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEFTT
Contracted but not provided for B TITE B sTHEREME
— acquisition of property, — WM - B R
plant and equipment 258,572 291,325
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Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share options scheme on 7 June 2010, but the
Company has not granted any shares options for the year under review.

Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of about 18,696
(2011: 11,473) staff in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees amounted
to approximately RMB612,624,000. The Group sought to further
strengthen staff training by offering focused training programmes and
study tours to management and professional technical personnel, and
disseminating the latest Government policy information on the lead-acid
motive battery industry to all staff. The Group continued to strive for
the enhancement of professional standards and overall qualities of its
staff. The Group also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated in their work and to leverage
their capabilities in serving its customers.

Prospects and development strategies

The Group’s long-term goals include:

° To become a benchmark enterprise and industry trend-setter in
China;
° To strengthen and lead the technological development of the

motive and storage battery industries; and

° To become the one of the world’s largest motive and storage
battery suppliers.

In order to achieve these long-term goals, the Group has planned to
lead the industry with technology by attaining 100% cadmium-free
production by the end of 2013. In turn, this could consolidate the
Group’s leading position in the industry while helping to guide the
industry to a greener future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The higher level of industry consolidation is expected to create a
favourable development opportunity for mature enterprises including
the Group. The elimination of a significant number of substandard
production capacities have swelled up the pressure of supply. At the
same time, the increasing usage of electric bikes has led to an increase
in market demand for lead-acid motive batteries. In order to meet the
continuous growth in market demand, the Group on one hand intends
to build up its production capacity through organic growth such as
upgrading existing production lines and constructing new production
facilities, and on the other hand carries out strategic acquisitions
with a view to continuously increasing our production capacity and
volume to meet additional customer demands. The Group’s new
production facility in Changxing County, Zhejiang Province commenced
production in January 2013. The Group’s seventh provincial production
base in Xinhe County, Hebei Province is also expected to come on
stream in April 2013, which should further enhance the Group’s own
production capacity. Meanwhile, the Group plans to make use of the
opportunity of industry consolidation, and put greater efforts in mergers
and reorganisations, in order to achieve the goal of increasing our
production capacity to 120 million units of batteries by the end of 2013.

As for the Primary Market, in addition to maintaining a close relationship
with existing business partners, the Group will also actively identify new
customers and explore new business opportunities. Quality products
and outstanding service are essential for enhancing customer loyalty,
which in turn will promote the sales growth in the Primary Market.
For the Secondary Market, the Group will continue to optimise its
distribution network to extend market coverage and boost its brand
reach and influence.

The Group will also continue to explore innovative technology in order
to keep pace with the advances and be the trend-setter of the industry.
Prospects of low-speed electric vehicles in China are getting brighter
and the Group has fully equipped itself for the development of low-
speed electric vehicles battery market. The research and development
plans of the Group include the development of gel lead-acid batteries
which have adopted the Enclosed Battery Formation Process, lead-acid
batteries with quickly changeable modules for electric vehicles, as well
as super lead-acid batteries for hybrid vehicles; improvement of large
scale low temperature and long life expectancy storage batteries, and;
optimising lithium-ion batteries for electric bikes and electric vehicles.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to uphold the value of “loyalty,
responsibility, achievement, dedication”,
into future development.

and bring vigour and vitality

36 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited SR B HiERER QT

TEETENRS  BHAREAEEEN
MIALRAESFENFNEREE - X
ERBANTEMERIZINHEESN - [
iﬁi%l%@ébQﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁﬁ‘%ﬁ“
B3N ERNFISIEN - BmEh RS
BENEL ZSE@%Z@#@}@EAZ@?E
HERMEEZFLEERMEZREEER
A BEARBMEWE  FERIGER
MEEZWMAEERR - AEEEMIAK
RN EEREEN T —=F—
ARIRIRE - SHEMIE N ENE L
BN EERM RGN T —=F1A
FIRIRE - At —FHESAEE
BB BER - R - AEEBEENBT
ERAMEE  MARHKEENNE A
EE_T--FFRAEEIERETHEN
ERBE -

E—&m5E  HPR T BERRSER
BAERHNETRE b e@RERIEN
BP - SRHEK - BENERMRITH
REEHHREAEFERETSHEERE - &M
RE—RMENHEEER - E-MTHS
[E $%H%%%%Tt’“%?ﬁiﬁi * A%
REEFNMSEZEEREZEN

AEBE S EEBTTRRZB AR - B
B S BTTERMMBERSR - KEE
BTENTENASBBHARL  AKHE
ERERINEREDARERESHIEE
ﬁﬁmiﬁﬂ’ﬁé):' o REEMEEBIEHE
AEABRACKEREE LA
IMWEE’E?L KB BREEIERBR
R E M HEARRER R RS aRE
@71*3 CARBEEDHETERERTEL

MEFHTEMAERETELE - KR A&
EiGHES (W BE - &R FR

MEEXE  SERBERIANERMNE
jj o



Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (B BABH), aged 44, is the founder of our Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for our Group’s
overall strategy planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received
a bachelor degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (71
PNADEIEEBR) in July 1990. Mr. Zhou has over 15 years experience in the
lead-acid battery industry. Mr. Zhou is the son of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei, both are our executive Directors.

Mr. Zhou Longrui (BI#), aged 74, is an executive Director of our
Group. He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the
technical aspects of our production process. Mr. Zhou joined our Group
in January 1998. Mr. Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery
industry gained at our Group and through previous employment. Early
in 1994 and since then, Mr. Zhou published several professional articles
in the field of lead-acid batteries on various magazines such Batteries
( C¢&F) ), International Power Information ( {EIEEREIE) ) and
Power Technologies ( {EJR#%1lT) ), etc. Mr. Zhou was appointed the
vice-chairman of the First Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee
(B—EWMESHNEXEZEEE=TELE) by China Electrotechnics
Technology Academy (FFEBIE TH T2 @) in August 2008 and member
of National Lead-acid Battery Standardization Technology Committee
(2 ENEBEMIZEFMEES) in July 2007. He is the father of Mr.
Zhou Mingming and the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, an Executive
Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei (#ZE7), aged 70, is an executive Director of our
Group. She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s
financial planning. She has been with our Group since January 1998.
Early in 1980 and since then, Ms. Yang worked in several battery
manufacturing factories, responsible for manufacturing or overall
operation of the factories and worked for the establishment preparation
of our Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich experience in the
lead-acid battery industry gained at our Group and through previous
employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou Mingming and
the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Mr. Yang Xinxin (B##7), aged 45, is an executive Director of our
Group. He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the
discharge of Mr. Zhou’s duties in the overall management of our Group.
Mr. Yang joined our Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in
the management of sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary of the party committee (2%
£70) and deputy head (BIft &) of Zhejiang Design Institute of Water
Conservancy and Hydroelectric Power (T L& 7KFI/KEE)BIRRAT),
and had served in such positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was
the deputy head (&l§ ) of the People’'s Government of Anji County,
Zhejiang Province (WI%& %5 % ARBUN) between June 2001 and
August 2003. Mr. Yang was the deputy director of Water Resources
Department of Zhejiang Province (i T&7KFIEE) between August
2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a professor-level senior engineer (
HIRP S M ITFERT). Mr. Yang obtained a master degree from Zhejiang
University (T AZ2) in March 1991 and a bachelor degree from Anhui
University of Science & Technology (Z#32 T K£), formerly known as
Huainan Mining Institute CEMIEZZFT), in July 1988. Mr. Yang is an
elder brother of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the son of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Deng Xihong (8= 4L), aged 48, is a non-executive Director of
our Group. Ms. Deng is a managing director of Hony Capital and is
responsible for, among other things, overseeing direct investments
and fund raising. Ms. Deng has more than 12 years of experience
in investment banking in the U.S., Hong Kong and China. Prior to
joining Hony Capital, Ms. Deng worked at J.P. Morgan in the areas of
investment banking and equity capital markets. From 2006 to 2007, she
served as the executive vice-president of Solarfun Power Holdings Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on Nasdaq (ticker: SOLF). Ms. Deng received
a master of science degree in computer science and technology from
the State University of New York at Stony Brook in December 1989,
and a master degree and a bachelor degree in computer science from
Tsinghua University in Beijing in 1988 and in 1985 respectively.
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Mr. Ng Chi Kit (& & #§), aged 40, was appointed as a non- executive
Director of our Group on 2 December 2010. Prior to the appointment,
Mr. Ng was our Group’s chief financial officer and company secretary.
Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1997 and is an Associate Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business
Service Department of Ernst & Young and was a senior manager of
Ernst & Young since 2004. Mr. Ng has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and auditing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang (CE#3&), aged 73, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Group. Mr. Wang has more than 40 years of experience
in the field of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008,
Mr. Wang has been working in China Electronic Technology Group
Limited’s 18th Research Institute (FBIE FRHE LB QAR E+ N\IFFLH)
since October 1962 as a vice chief engineer and mainly in charge of
battery technology development. In addition, Mr. Wang received various
national awards for his expertise on battery technology, such as the
first class award on science and technology advancement (B} 25 11
#—%48) from the Ministry of Information Technology of the PRC (1 %
ARFHEAB(Z B EXEL) on his research on lithium rechargeable battery
technology in October 1999. Mr. Wang received a bachelor degree in
electrochemistry from Fudan University in 1962.
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Prof. Ouyang Minggao (B(f58i&), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from
the Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in
Engineering in 1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (/& Z KX£2) since
1994 at which he held various titles including Ministry of Education
Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor (37 & LEEFEHIR)
and supervisor of the National Key Laboratory for Automobile Safety
and Energy-saving Research ((TBEZZHFEHREHERE L ().
Prof. OQuyang is a Standing Member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (1B A RBUA T
CZ2ELEEEKEELZE). Prof. Ouyang is also an independent non-
executive Director of Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Shanghai
Diesel Engine Company Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (/&5 Mm%
AR AR, a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Chongging Changan Automobile Company Limited
(Stock Code: 000625) (EE KL /AERMHAERAF]), a company listed
on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Prof. Ouyang also
served as independent non-executive Director of Aerospace Hi-Tech
Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 000901) (fifn k%A% &= %
mBEBRAF]), a company listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange from December 2011 to March 2013.
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Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Z#f#), aged 58, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the
Kingston Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his
postgraduate diploma in business from the Curtin University of
Technology in Australia in February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner
of Ernst & Young for 29 years until 2009 and had held key leadership
positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Registered Accountants.
Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent non-executive director
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
966), West China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233), China Modern
Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Electrical Appliances
Holding Limited (Stock Code: 493), Tibet 5100 Water Resources
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1115), CITIC Securities Company Limited
(Stock Code: 6030) and NVC Lighting Holding Limited (Stock Code:
2222), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since October 2009, July 2010, October 2010, March 2011,
April 2011, November 2011 and November 2012, respectively, and Sino
Vanadium Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange in Canada between October 2009 and December 2011. Mr.
Lee has been appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in China since 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (FR#&2), aged 39, is our investment director
and head of the new energy division. Mr. Chen graduated from the
University of Science and Technology of China (FEIRIZHiiK£)
with a bachelor degree in Industrial Automation in 1995 and obtained
a Master of Business Administration from University of Science and
Technology of China in 2005. Mr. Chen joined our Group in 2003 as
assistant of president and has since 2008 held his current position as
head of the new energy division.

Prof. Chen Tixian (FRE& 1), aged 74, is the head of our research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of our Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor’'s degree
in chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (BEPFIKE) in 1961,
Prof. Chen has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid battery
industry. Prof. Chen lectured in the chemistry department of Xiamen
University between 1961 and 1989 when he retired as a professor. Prof.
Chen joined our Group in April 2004 and has since held his current
position as the head of the research department of our Group.

Mr. Zhou Mingsong (FBI#2) aged 41, is the head of the marketing
department of our Group and is responsible for supervising the
preparation and execution of the annual sales plan. Mr. Zhou graduated
from the Zhejiang Province Jinhua Sales and Marketing College (41T
S FEMIER) with a certificate in statistics in July 1993. Since joining
our Group, he has held several positions in our Group including
production staff, production team leader, deputy chief of the production
department, head of inventory, assistant manager of the after-sales
service department, manager of the after- sales service department,
head of the sales department and deputy general manager of the
marketing department.
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Mr. Qian Shunrong (£JE%8), aged 43, is the head of the production
department of our Group and is responsible for the overall management
of the production department. Mr. Qian completed his junior high school
education in 1985. Mr. Qian joined our Group in 2003 and has held
several positions in our Group including deputy general manager of
Henan Chaowei, head of the supervision and management department
and deputy general manager of the production department.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip (&%), aged 37, was appointed as our chief
financial officer and company secretary, on 2 December 2010. Prior
to joining our group, Mr. Leung was the financial controller and
the company secretary of Tiangong International Company Limited
(RIEIBERRAF]) (Stock Code: 826), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to November 2010. Prior to such
appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal auditor of the Swire Group and
was previously a manager with the assurance and advisory business
services department of Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Leung graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the
University of Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2010. He is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate

governance. The Company acknowledges the important role
of its Board in providing effective leadership and direction to the
Company’s business, and ensuring transparency and accountability
of the Company'’s operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct

and growth of the Group’s business.

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Old Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and re-named it the Corporate
Governance Code (the “New Code”). The New Code took effect on 1
April 2012.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. During the period from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Company has complied with
the Old Code and the New Code for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31
December 2012 except for the deviations set out below:

Code Provision A.2.1 requires the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is currently both the
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes efficiency
of its operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Code provision A.2.7: The chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors without the executive
directors present. Such meeting was held after the period under review
on 24 March 2013.

Code provision A.6.7: independent non-executive Directors and other
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings.

Mr. Yang Xinxin, an executive Director, Ms. Deng Xihong, a
non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jigiang and Prof. Ouyang
Minggao, both independent non-executive Directors, were unable to
attend the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 May

2012 due to other business engagement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE o3
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THE BOARD =4
The board of directors (“Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”) #ARARES ([ESF)) e (B2 a8

is responsible for the leadership, control and management of the 48%&

CEBHIREBART RERNEE

Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and HAEBEERBREIER LR AKEER
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning FEEFHE @ EEREBER - HERE
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The RERH  -EBFeBEREINMEENREIRE
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing |8 + IS /T ¥ KBNS IEAER B B2
business strategies and management of the daily operations of the 7 - EE@/T{EE TN HbaiE

Group’s business to the management. The Board exercises a number
of powers which include:

o formulation of long-term strategy °

° approving public announcements °

° approving financial statement, including interim and annual .
results

o approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects °

. authorising significant changes to the capital structure and °

material borrowings

o any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant .
general mandates

o making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and e
reviewing dividend policy
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° approving appointments to the Board

° setting the Group remuneration policy

° reviewing operational and financial performance
o reviewing the effectiveness of internal control

The Board meets at least four times a year and additional meetings
are held when required to discuss significant events and issues. The
company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
agenda for Board meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14
days’ advance notice, and all Directors would be served with an agenda
with supporting papers at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so
as to ensure that there is timely access to relevant information. The
Group ensures that all the Board members are informed of the Group’s
latest developments and thereby assists them in the discharge of their
duties. The Directors may take independent professional advice as and
when appropriate, at the Company’s expense. Minutes of the Board and
Board committees are taken by the company secretary. Such minutes
of the Board and Board committees, together with supporting papers,
are made available for inspection by any Director following reasonable
notice. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for
their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for its directors and officers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor
of the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the development,
review and monitoring of the code of conduct of the Company’s
employees and directors; and review the Company’s compliance with
the New Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin),
two non-executive Directors (Ms. Deng Xihong and Mr. Ng Chi Kit) and
three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai). Among the executive
Directors, Mr. Zhou Mingming is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin.
They are both sons of Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and
Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei. Biographical details
of the Directors of the Group as at the date of this report are set out
on pages 37 to 41 of this annual report. Independent non- executive
Directors account for one-third of the members of the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors come either from the battery
industry or have related professional background, bringing valuable
expertise and experience that promotes the best interests of the
Group and its shareholders. The role of the independent non-executive
Directors is to provide independent and objective opinions to the Board
for its consideration. The Company has received confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director about his independence as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and continues to consider each
of them to be independent.
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BOARD MEETINGS EEEER

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board has held atotal #HEZE-ZT— -+ -_A=+—HIFE
of 7 Board meetings for the main purposes of formulating business RN BEEE@CDETAHKINESS SR
development and prospects of the Group, reviewing and considering TER A TR AEBEMEBLERE LA
the financial and operating performance. 5 BREMAERMBREERR -

The attendance of each director at the Board meetings are set out ‘EEREZ@@=MHELENT

below:

Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
Name of Director EERE HERE EBESBRE
Mr. Zhou Mingming [ERARA S 77
Mr. Zhou Longrui AgEmL A 77
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ L 717
Mr. Yang Xinxin GRS 77
Ms. Deng Xihong BELArt 717
Mr. Ng Chi Kit QR 717
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR SEE 77
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 IR = % 77
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai =EELE 717

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHAR

Code Provision A.2.1 requires the roles of chairman and chief executive — SFRIEXXEA 2 1EE SR X F RITHAEH T
officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is currently both the B - IS > FERRRALELESGFEES
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. The EERAQAFITHES - E=Z€RE - B
Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the execution  BIRIZHEJ7 (£ 2 &£ Bl S 11T E A SR RS
of the Group’s business strategies promptly and maximizes efficiency WiESELEWER - Bt - ARG R E
of its operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its  EEERRERAR) o

shareholders as a whole.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions
of the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition
to the Board during the year are required to retire at the first general
meeting following their appointments and new Directors appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy during the year are required to
retire at the first general meeting following their appointments, and
in both cases, the acting Directors will be eligible for re-election at
such general meeting. All Directors are required to retire by rotation at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting, subject to
re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a term of not
more than three years.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed
of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code regarding continuous professional development. The
Company updates directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time
to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company has also organised one training session
for the Directors of the Company conducted by its Hong Kong legal
advisers. The training session covered topics including, among others,
the requirements of the New Code, the disclosure of price sensitive
information and establishment of an internal control system.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of RZBEIREHMIE  ESNERNEIE
training received by the directors during the year is as follows: M EWT

Type of continuous
professional development

programmes

Directors B= BESXEREEER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming 8RR A4 A, B
Mr. Zhou Longrui EReim A A B
Ms. Yang Yunfei HBERZ LT A, B
Mr. Yang Xinxin ISR A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Deng Xihong MEaz4 A B
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGESE A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang TFHER S A, B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 PR S 3% A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TEEEE A, B
Notes: Htat -
A: attending training session and/or seminars A HEEYRER TS
B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of B : BETE LT AR A R EHE

the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements RATERB) T FHELE T EH]
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
for overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. All
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.chaowei.
com.hk” and the website of the Stock Exchange and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees would report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Ng Chi Kit, and all three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr.
Lee”),
chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Lee has professional qualification
and experience in financial matters.

Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao. Mr. Lee is the

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee is mainly responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include
reviewing and recommending for the Board’s approval the interim
and the annual financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’
independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;
and reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval the
external auditor's remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors’ attendance
of the meetings of the audit committee is set out as follows:

BE-_ZT——+-_A=+—HIFE "
EELREERZTESERNBAEI W
T

Attendance/Number
of audit committee meetings

Name of Director EEEH HERY  BREEEERIH
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGTE 2/2
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHEEEAE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang pat Yt 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B F5 A i 2% 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters which included
the review of the interim and annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr.
Lee Conway Kong Wai is the chairman of the remuneration committee.
The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
members of senior management. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Group were reviewed
and discussed at the meeting of the remuneration committee. The
Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the remuneration committee
is set out as follows:

HE-_T——FE+_A=+—HIEE -

FNEZEeRe LERRTmASEES
RREBEEOTINGE - ESHEEHM

ZEEERNBRHIIAT

Attendance/Number
of remuneration
committee meetings

Name of Director EEEB HERE  FHMZEESESERAK
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERRRR L& 1/1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai ENETED 11
Mr. Wang Jigiang TEHEsR 11

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30 March
2012 with specific terms of reference which deal clearly with its
duties and responsibilities. The nomination committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr.
Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou Mingming is the chairman of the nomination
committee. The principal responsibilities of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate strategy. The
nomination committee is also responsible for 1) identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; 2) assessing the independence of
independent non- executive directors of the Company; and 3) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors of the Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors’ attendance

of the meetings of the nomination committee is set out as follows:

EREHFREZESERNBAEI M
T

Attendance/Number
of nomination
committee meetings

Name of Director EEEB HERE, REZEEEHRH
Mr. Zhou Mingming [ERFRA S A& 1/1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai ENETHD 11
Mr. Wang Jigiang A it 11
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EEmRHBEHRRIRMNET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012, which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The reporting responsibility of
the external auditors of the Company on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent auditor’s report
on pages 78 to 79.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the company secretary of the Company, reports
to the chairman of the Board. The details of his biographical is set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Mr. Leung also confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2012.

INTERNAL CONTROL

A sound internal control system enhances the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, ensures compliance with laws and regulations
and mitigates the Group’s business risk. The Board is responsible
for the system of internal control of the Group and reviewing its
effectiveness.
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The Board and the Group’s management hold meetings on a regular
basis to review and evaluate the Group’s business operations,
production processes and financial reporting processes in order to
achieve reasonable assurance of the following:

° Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
o Reliability of financial reporting
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

To maintain an effective internal control system that helps the Group
to achieve its business objectives and safeguard its assets, the
Group has implemented measures including: (i) establishing written
policies and work flow for major operations and production cycles; (ii)
having in place appropriate segregation of duties; (iii) setting proper
authorization levels and (iv) establishing an internal audit function for
regular monitoring of the internal control system.

The Board, through the audit committee, reviewed the internal control
system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
considered that the system of internal control of the Group had been
in place and had been functioning effectively.

In addition, the internal audit department of the Company conducts
regular and independent reviews of the effectiveness of the internal
control system. The audit committee reviews the findings and opinion
of the internal audit department on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and reports to the board on such reviews.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Company performs independent
internal audit reviews for different business units and functions in the
Group on a systematic and ongoing basis. The frequency of review of
individual business units or functions is determined after an assessment
of the risks involved. The audit committee endorses the internal audit
plan annually. The internal audit department has unrestricted access to
different parts of the business. It submits regular reports for the audit
committee’s review in accordance with the approved internal audit plan.
Concerns which have been reported by the internal audit department
are monitored by management by taking appropriate remedial actions.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee
pre-approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the
audit services.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of
audit services was RMB2,050,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services,
namely review of unaudited interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2012, was RMB300,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director
has been given a copy of the Own Code. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied
with the Own Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company
and/or its securities. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the year under review. The Company will notify the Directors
and relevant employees of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities in advance.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and senior management recognize the importance of
communication with shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and
financial performance information to shareholders. The Group’s senior
management also maintains close communication with investors,
analysts and the media by other channels including roadshows,
briefings and individual meetings. The Group has set up its own
website http://www.chaowei.com.hk, which is updated on a regular
basis, as a means to provide updated information on the Company to
investors.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.

The 2012 annual general meeting (2012 AGM”) was held on 24 May
2012. The attendance record of the directors at the 2012 AGM is set
out below:

REEBRRBEA
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—E——FERFRAFARE ([ ZT—=F
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THHRT  BEER T ——_FERRE
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Directors Attendance/
Number of general meetings

Directors BE=s ESHERE BRERAZRE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhou Mingming IEEEEED e 1/1
Mr. Zhou Longrui FERERm L 1/1
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZ LT 11
Mr. Yang Xinxin ki 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Deng Xihong M=zt 0/1
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGESE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. Wang Jigiang RS E 0/1
Prof. Ouyang Minggao X5 A S 2% 0/1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEEEAE 1/1

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2012 AGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the New Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”), shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board. The
written requisition must specify the business to be transacted on the
meeting, which shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Unit 907, Level 9 Fairmont House 8 Cotton Tree Drive Central
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition,
the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s)
concerned may themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Unit 907, Level 9, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong
Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to respond to the shareholders’
questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to
the Board in writing for the Board’s consideration not less than 7 days
prior to the date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
of the Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph
“Procedures for directing shareholder’ enquiries to the Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 which have been audited by the Company’s auditor Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants and reviewed by the
audit committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is the production and sales
of lead-acid motive battery for electric bike markets in China. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 50 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 80 to 187.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 80.

The Board proposed a final dividend payment of RMB0.148 per share
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012, which will be subject
to approval by shareholders of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year under review
amounted to RMB2,990,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2012,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB269,278,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year under review are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming
Mr. Zhou Longrui
Ms. Yang Yunfei
Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Deng Xihong
Mr. Ng Chi Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of
the articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for periods of three years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr.
Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
and the Company considers each of them is independent pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of our Directors and the
Company’s chief executive in the shares or debentures of the Company
or associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and/or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein
or which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, are set
out below:

Interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations:

Long positions in the Company

EERKRG - HEBROKRES
2

RZE——F+-A=+—80 " &HMHNE
EREARBFETHRAER AR AR
REEE (TR R BS RHAEKRAIZEXV
) MRHSESS - EEREEF KB
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FREREESIRAEENEER XK
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BRRZEMMmLE MR - KRB L

MR ET AR EETETESFRZIWNIZ
ESFAIENE AR R REBEZATHER - a0
TFRAR :

RN B B H AR EE A B 0 B A
KEHE AR

- AERAR D

REQTRNER

Approximate
percentage of
in the Company/

associated

corporations

HRAEXT

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares LR

B 53 EEME RO EE BAED

Mr. Zhou Mingming (M@ Interest in a controlled corporation 417,000,000 41.48%
(“Mr. Zhou”) and interest in spouse
JEBRBA S e (T 54 ) X EE R G KBRS

Mr. Zhou Longrui “ Interest in a controlled corporation 72,450,000 7.21%
[EBER W and interest in spouse
R BRI BES

Ms. Yang Yunfei © Interest in a controlled corporation 72,450,000 7.21%

BERLLO

and interest in spouse

LB s KB
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Notes:

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

(%)

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great
State Investments Limited (“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 245,585,000 Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride
(PTC) Limited (“Jolly Pride”) and is therefore deemed to be interested
in the 71,415,000 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to a
trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and entered into between Mr. Zhou and
Jolly Pride in favour of 53 individuals who are employees of our Group
(the “Jolly Pride Trust Deed”), the economic interest of all the Shares
which it holds from time to time shall belong to the said 53 employees.
However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other rights
as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right
to participate in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be
exercisable by the said 53 employees and shall be exercised by Jolly
Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr.
Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than
economic interest) of all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the
terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is
also deemed to be interested in 100,000,000 Shares which Ms. Fang
Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai
Xiang Limited.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High
Joy Investments Limited (“High Joy”) and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by High Joy. In addition, as
Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO,
he is also deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 shares which Ms.
Yang Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of
Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”).

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny
Century and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000
Shares held by Shiny Century. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the
spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed
to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is
interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of our Company which were required to be disclosed
to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly
or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Group:

The Company

FERRREAQT KRG REE
ROFHERR AR

R-_ZE——F+-_A=+—8 " BESA
ML TATEBREESRBAEGAE
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Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares Shareholding
=L B RENE ROBE HFHRESIEIL
Mr. Zhou Mingming"®® Interest in controlled corporations 417,000,000 (L) 41.48%
[E AR S @ XEEEER

Great State® Beneficial owner 245,585,000 (L) 24.43%
& EnEEA

Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 71,415,000 (L) 7.10%
REE® EREEA

Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations 417,000,000 (L) 41.48%
TEELL® R EEER

Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai Xiang”)® Beneficial owner 100,000,000 (L) 9.95%

BEARAR (TBFE]®

BEDBBA
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Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares Shareholding

HB B RENEE ROBE HFHRESIEIL

Legend Holdings Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%

AR BRARO R AE kR

Right Lane Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%
R EE kR

Hony Capital Management Limited®  Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%
RIEEE R

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%
R EE R

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.®® Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%
REEE RS

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.® Interest in controlled corporations 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%
R EE kR

Castle Lead® Beneficial owner 150,000,000 (L) 14.92%

I EnlAA

Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation and 72,450,000 (L) 7.21%

AR L E® interest held by spouse
RIEEE R R B

High Joy® Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.60%

S8 EnERA

Ms. Yang Yunfei® Interest in a controlled corporation and 72,450,000 (L) 7.21%

BERZLO Interest held by spouse
R LE kR R B

Shiny Century® Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.60%

4RO BB A

UBS AG Beneficial owner and interest 50,289,731 (L) 5.00%

in controlled corporations 737,000 (S) 0.07%

BB ARZIEEEER

(L):  Long position (L)y: &

(S):  Short position (8): #A&

Notes: i -

(1) Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State (1) BISEERRB 2 EE BETIRA S

and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Great

State.

125 EU B BRI B R 2 H
BH NS -

~
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Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Jolly Pride.
Pursuant to the Jolly Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the
Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to 563 employees of
our Group. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all
other rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights
and right to participate in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall
not be exercisable by the said 53 employees and shall be enjoyed by
Jolly Pride exclusively. Mr. Zhou is also the sole director of Jolly Pride.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is
also deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun
is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai Xiang.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai
Xiang and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Bai Xiang. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou,
pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride.

Castle Lead is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P., which is
controlled by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is in turn controlled by its sole general
partner, Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited. Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Management Limited, in
which Legend Holdings Limited, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Right Lane Limited, has 45% interest.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High
Joy and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
High Joy. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang
Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Shiny Century.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny
Century and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Shiny Century. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr.
Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested
in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him
being the sole shareholder of High Joy.
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(8) To the best knowledge of the Company, UBS AG (i) is beneficial owner
of 8,755,914 Shares; (ii) has security interest in 39,528,656 Shares, and
(iii) is interested in an aggregate of 2,005,161 Shares through UBS Fund
Management (Switzerland) AG, UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) AG
and UBS Securities LCC, all of which are entities controlled by it. In
addition, UBS AG (i) has a short position in 387,000 Shares as beneficial
owner; and (ii) has a short position of 350,000 Shares by reason of the
short position in such Shares of UBS Securities LLC.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable a Director of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 37 to 43.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company adopted a share options scheme on 7 June 2010. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, no option has been granted pursuant
to the share options scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions” below
and “Related party transactions” in note 46 to the financial statements,
no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their respective
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group, to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a part, during the year of 2012.

(8) B’ A& 2 A B A1 UBS AG()#A
8,755, 914K 17 )z FEA A 7 (i)
39,528,656/ R 17 H B 7
L(in)i#& #BUBS Fund Management
(Switzerland) AG - UBS Fund
Services (Luxembourg) AGERUBS
Securities LCC (¥ B8R E I #HIF EE2)
K& H2,005, 16182 17 # VB 1w »
WSk - UBS AG()A B EBFA G R
387,000/ J& 17 0 1 B KB+ R(i))H
UBS Securities LLCH350,0008%/% 17
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During the year of 2012, no contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of its
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Old Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and re-named it the Corporate
Governance Code (the “New Code”). The New Code took effect on 1
April 2012. During the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2012, the Company has complied with the Old Code and the New
Code for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 except
for the deviations to the code provision A.2.1, A.2.7 and A.6.7 of the
Corporate Governance Code. For details, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on page 44 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee. For details, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 51 to 52 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

3.0%/9.7%
9.1%/31.7%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate
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At no time during the year under review had the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, and are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between
certain connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant
disclosure had been made by the Company in the prospectus of the
Company dated 24 June 2010.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS EXEMPT
FROM REPORTING, ANNOUNCEMENT AND INDEPENDENT
SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL

The following transactions fall under the exemptions set forth in Rule
14.A33(3) of the Listing Rules and is therefore exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval.

Supply of active additives

Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (BBEERERAF]) (“Chaowei Power”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Pufa Power Co., Ltd.
(“Pufa Power”), a connected person of our Company by virtue of Rule
14A.11 (4) of the Listing Rules, entered into an agreement (“Active
Additives Supply Agreement”) dated 10 June 2010, by which Chaowei
Power agreed to supply active additives to Pufa Power for a term
of three years with retrospective effect from 1 January 2010 to 31
December 2012, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions). Pursuant to the Active Additives Supply Agreement,
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Chaowei Power will supply active additives to Pufa Power at a current
price of RMB38.46 per pack, excluding value-added taxes or RMB45
per pack, including value-added taxes (subject to adjustments which
shall not, in any event, be lower than the price of active additives sold
by our Group to independent third parties), which price is comparable
to that of active additives sold to independent third parties. In view of
the above, the Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable and on
normal commercial terms to sell activities to Pufa Power at a current
price of RMB38.46 per pack, and such transactions are in the interest
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, sales of active additives to Pufa Power amounted
to RMB1,250,000, which was lower than the 2012 annual cap of
RMB2,200,000.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions between members of our Group constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions of our Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of any of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being greater than 5%
on an annual basis or the annual consideration being greater than
HK$10,000,000:
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Description of transaction Parties BN REEH
1. Purchase of electrode plates Chaowei Power and Pufa Power 1. BEEWHIR HEERLEESIR
(B1BIR)
2. Supply of lead-acid batteries Chaowei Power and Henan 2 MESEEN BEEREIEEE
Yifeng E-bikes B ES
Purchase of plastic battery Chaowei Power and Changxing 3. BESHNER BEHERRRELE
cases (EMEFR) Xiante
Purchase of lead-acid batteries Chaowei Power and Zhejiang 4 BENREN HBEERMNTIKE
Yongda
Purchase of processing services ~ Chaowei Power and Zhejiang 5. BENIRYE EBEERRNLIKE
Yongda
Supply of materials Chaowei Power and Zhejiang 6. MR R B IR AT oKk E



Purchase of electrode plates

Chaowei Power and Pufa Power entered into an agreement (the
“Electrode Plates Purchase Agreement”) dated 10 June 2010, by which
Pufa Power has agreed to supply electrode plates to Chaowei Power for
a term of three years with retrospective effect from 1 January 2010 to
31 December 2012, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions). Pursuant to the Electrode Plates Purchase Agreement,
Pufa Power supply electrode plates to Chaowei Power at a price
determined by reference to the lowest average price of lead quoted
on the Shanghai Metals Market (www.smm.cn) and a processing fee
of RMB4,400 per tonne which covers the other costs of Pufa Power,
such as the cost of other raw materials required for the production of
electrode plates (e.g. active additives), labour, water and electricity
and other miscellaneous overhead, machinery depreciation, plus a
reasonable profit margin of Pufa Power. The said processing fee of
RMB4,400 per tonne is calculated by reference to the prevailing market
price of the above components thus will be subject to adjustment
(which shall not, in any event, be higher than the processing fee
charged by other suppliers of electrode plates of our Group who are
independent third parties). The price of electrode plates provided
by Pufa Power is comparable to that provided by independent third
parties. In view of the above, the Directors consider that it is fair and
reasonable and on normal commercial terms to purchase electrode
plates from Pufa Power at such price, and such transactions are in the
interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, purchase of electrode plates from Pufa Power
amounted to RMB119,354,000 which is lower than the 2012 annual
cap of RMB206,000,000.

The Electrode Plates Purchase Agreement has been renewed on 11
December 2012 for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2013 and on the same terms as the previous Electrode Plates Purchase
Agreement.
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Supply of lead-acid batteries

Chaowei Power and Henan Yifeng Electric Bikes Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (“Henan Yifeng E-bikes”), a connected person of our Company by
virtue of Rule 14A.11 (4) of the Listing Rules, entered into an agreement
(the “Lead-acid Batteries Supply Agreement”) dated 10 June 2010,
by which Chaowei Power has agreed to supply lead-acid batteries to
Henan Yifeng E-bikes for a term of three years with retrospective effect
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012, renewable upon expiry
(subject to compliance with the provisions under the Listing Rules
regarding continuing connected transactions).

Pursuant to the Lead-acid Batteries Supply Agreement, Chaowei Power
supply lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng E-bikes at market price
which shall not, in any event, be lower than the price of lead-acid
batteries sold by our Group to other independent third parties. In view
of the above, the Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable and
on normal commercial terms to sell lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng
E-bikes at such price, and such transactions are in the interest of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, sales of lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng E-bikes
amounted to RMB2,186,000 which is lower than the 2012 annual cap
of RMB21,200,000.

The Lead-acid Batteries Supply Agreement has been renewed on 11
December 2012 for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2013 and on the same terms as the previous Lead-acid Batteries
Supply Agreement.
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Purchase of plastic battery cases

Chaowei Power and Changxing Xiante Plastics Co. Ltd. (“Changxing
Xiante”) entered into a contracting agreement (the “Battery Plastic
Cases Purchase Agreement”) dated 10 June 2010, by which Changxing
Xiante has agreed to supply plastic battery cases to Chaowei Power
for a term of three years with retrospective effect from 1 January
2010 to 31 December 2012,
compliance with the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding

renewable upon expiry (subject to

continuing connected transactions). Pursuant to the Battery Plastic
Cases Purchase Agreement, Changxing Xiante will supply plastic
battery cases to Chaowei Power at market price which shall not, in any
event, be higher than the price of plastic battery cases sourced by our
Group from independent third party suppliers. In view of the above,
the Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable and on normal
commercial terms to purchase battery plastics cases from Changxing
Xiante at such price, and such transactions are in the interest of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, purchase of plastic battery cases from Changxing
Xiante amounted to RMB22,764,000, which is lower than the 2012
annual cap of RMB25,300,000.

The Battery Plastic Cases Purchase Agreement has been renewed
on 11 December 2012 for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2013 and on the same terms as the previous Battery Plastic
Cases Purchase Agreement.

Purchase of lead-acid batteries

Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Yongda entered into an agreement (the
“Batteries Purchase Agreement”) dated 22 August 2012, by which
Chaowei Power has agreed to purchase lead-acid batteries from
Zhejiang Yongda for a term with retrospective effect from 1 May 2012
to 31 December 2014, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding continuing
connected transactions).

BEEMER
BRERAERISLCHEEZRARAR ([RE
ERD LB/ T -TF AT
AMems ((En2RBEHRE]) -
Bt RESEHRERBRERTEE D
B A_FT-TF-A-HE-_T—=
F+-A=1+—RH KRHE=F YXABEH
N EWETTES HEBTLETR
AEARFERERINEX - RBEEDLE
REEWE  RELFHERMERBRE
BREBEMER (RMEEROATES
RAEBERBLE=THEFRBEE L
ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%%*i%zﬁ'&t

MERRARAELCEEESHBHRBEATS
B UHALEREEGRR - ZERSTIH
BARRNAMREAEEFZE -

TR RRELFESETHBHREARE
22,764,0007T ° ﬁ_;—_ia’ﬁrﬁﬂﬁ
AR#05,300,0007T A1 -

BB HREEH RN T ——F+=_A+
—HESEE=-F B-_FT—=F—HA—H
HBAERL - KRR Al 2 BB SRIB B ek

A o

BEHOME
BEEREN T KETZLEHRS T —
“ENAZ T ZAoBE (EHRER
&) Bt BEEIRR BRI KER
BmREL FHE_T——FAHF—H
i31§*@¢+*ﬂ:+*5¢*iﬁ
EWMERS - EmRE TESE - EAEST
ETRABREFEREZ SMAMIEX -

Annual Report 2012 73




Directors’ Report

ESERE

Pursuant to the Batteries Purchase Agreement, Zhejiang Yongda will
supply lead-acid batteries to Chaowei Power at market price which
shall not, in any event, be higher than the price of the lead-acid
batteries sourced by Chaowei Power from other independent third
parties, except where such price is specified by the government, at
such specified price. The Directors are of the view that the agreement
has been entered into on normal commercial terms, and the terms
thereof are fair and reasonable and are in the interest of the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, purchase of lead-acid batteries from Zhejiang Yongda
amounted to RMB99,398,000, which is lower than the 2012 annual cap
of RMB100,000,000.

Purchase of processing services

Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Yongda entered into an agreement
(the “Processing Services Agreement”) dated 22 August 2012, by
which Zhejiang Yongda has agreed to provide processing services in
connection with the production of lead-acid batteries, including battery
assembling and charging services, to Chaowei Power for a term with
retrospective effect from 1 May 2012 to 31 December 2014, renewable
upon expiry (subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Listing Rules regarding continuing connected transactions).

Pursuant to the Processing Services Agreement, Zhejiang Yongda will
provide processing services to Chaowei Power at market price which
shall not, in any event, be higher than the processing services fees paid
by Chaowei Power to other independent third parties, except where
such price is specified by the government, at such specified price.
The Directors are of the view that the agreement has been entered
into on normal commercial terms, and the terms thereof are fair and
reasonable and are in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

During the year, purchase of processing services from Zhejiang Yongda
amounted to RMB427,000, which is lower than the 2012 annual cap
of RMB5,000,000.
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Supply of materials

Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Yongda entered into an agreement
(the “Materials Sales Agreement”) dated 22 August 2012, by which
Chaowei Power has agreed to sell materials required for the production
of lead-acid batteries and semi-finished lead-acid battery products to
Zhejiang Yongda for a term with retrospective effect from 1 May 2012
to 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the Materials Sales Agreement, Chaowei Power will supply
materials with reference to the costs of the materials for the production
of lead-acid batteries or semi-finished lead-acid battery products,
which shall not, in any event, be lower than the price of the materials
for the production of lead-acid batteries or semi-finished lead-acid
battery products sold by Chaowei Power to other independent third
parties or the Group’s costs in procuring the same, whichever is higher,
except where such price is specified by the government, at such
specified price. The Directors are of the view that the agreement has
been entered into on normal commercial terms, and the terms thereof
are fair and reasonable and are in the interest of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

During the year, sales of materials to Zhejiang Yongda amounted
to RMB7,887,000, which is lower than the 2012 annual cap of
RMB80,000,000.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed

that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The auditors of the Company have reported to the Directors that during
the financial year:

(i) the above continuing connected transactions have been
approved by the board of Directors;

(i) the above continuing connected transactions are in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company;

(iii)  the above continuing connected transactions have been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions; and

(iv)  the respective cap amounts set out in the relevant agreements
referred to above have not been exceeded.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively
the “Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the year ended
31 December 2012, each of them has complied with the deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 7 June 2010
executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company.
There has not been any opportunity in any restricted business (being
business which is or may be in competition with the business of
any member of the Group from time to time) being referred by
the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-competition by the
Controlling Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed
of Non-competition during the year under review.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 188 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, during the year
under review and as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants
who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R S ETE S

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 187,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including

78 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited R E) HIZRER 2 7

BERBOER
BRATRR
(RESHSZMELABRL )

BMEEZEMNBRE NIERER A
A (TERR) REMBAR (B ES
B ) iR e Mg wmER (HINE0EESE
187H) ' EFBER_Z——F+=-A=
T-HEEMBIRAEK  BHEZ BB
FENGEEHEHERR  HAEREDER
MigABEeRER  UREBSHBORH
T REAMRAER -

EERGEUBHEBRAKEN
B

BAREFALERE (BB HHRE L
AI) RES (RN HBBRE - HY
EEMATHGAHBES ABaES
FRALENNEEH - ARIREG S5
B3 T B R B B A
SR -

BEETNEE

AP & E R LR E W B IRR - RIF
BN EREZEREMBEREERE
RoUEABERREE  TFEEMH
& WP AR ARENAT - SHEME
AT BEIEREZREL - HPIERE
(BIFREAH R EITEK - EBLBERIBRK
BFETBEAR  WRERWMITEZ
NEBRRGEEMBHREZE N FHEMA
EXERRA -

BRENAITIEF AR A RS S M B R
RSB LRBEBEENNEREE - &
E IR FF BUR R AZ BEm 80 2 - SRR



the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and
of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
METHEHBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

2012 2011
=F-=F —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=s ARYEF T ARBFT
(Restated)
(e &E5)
(Note 48)
(Mi7E48)
Revenue WA 5 9,559,439 4,932,011
Cost of sales SHE AR (7,664,679) (3,526,016)
Gross profit EF 1,894,760 1,405,995
Other income H AU A 6 49,488 26,700
Distribution and selling expenses DHEMEERY (396,653) (236,160)
Administrative expenses TEFEX (339,343) (222,928)
Research and development expenses 25 f 5&x (314,449) (182,723)
Other expenses and other losses Han A kA EE 7 (30,668) (37,032)
Finance costs BB AR 8 (91,044) (42,971
Share of result of an associate JEIE—REFE A RIS 20 (19,620) -
Profit before tax B A5 AT 9 752,471 710,881
Income tax expense Frig®i il 2 12 (132,537) (121,058)
Profit and total comprehensive FRFEREEKR AL
income for the year 619,934 589,823
Profit and total comprehensive AT AT EEFE R 2E
income attributable to: WA LBRE -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN 496,328 455,338
Non-controlling interests IR = 123,606 134,485
619,934 589,823
Earnings per share Bix&AF 13
- Basic (RMB) —HAKR (ARET) 0.49 0.45
~ Diluted (RMB) — s (AR%T) 0.49 N/A i F
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2012 A —
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2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBT R ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K&K 15 2,274,743 1,145,711
Prepaid lease payments FEREERA 16 193,207 126,207
Investment property Ay 17 7,663 8,410
Deferred tax assets EEFITEE & 18 123,568 78,450
Deposits paid for acquisition of WM - BB R
property, plant and equipment SR RE 132,336 108,424
Goodwill Bk 19 49,447 25,628
Interest in an associate R—RE AR 2 20 38,380 -
Available-for-sale investment At HERE 21 - 4,000
Other receivables HAth fE U SRIE 27 - 28,300
Loan receivable JEWE R 22 60,000 -
2,879,344 1,525,130
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 23 1,392,875 895,919
Trade receivables BB SRR 24 277,397 237,038
Bills receivable EUEE 25 1,001,359 736,614
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE & E At e Y kIR 27 419,269 127,950
Amounts due from related parties FEUL G a8 5 5 E 46(c) 16,863 108
Prepaid lease payments TBAEEIE 16 4,114 2,671
Money market funds EEmGES 28 20,000 -
Restricted bank deposits IR HIERITIF 29 201,289 150,926
Bank balances and cash IRITESRNEIR S 29 905,402 844,750
4,238,568 2,996,066
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Trade payables EREZER 30 1,271,724 587,964
Bills payable ERNEE 31 8,460 37,640
Other payables Hfth FE A I8 32 521,960 413,459
Amounts due to related parties FER B REE T I8 46(c) 29,916 8,976
Income tax payable FET TS TR 32,679 37,522
Provision Bl 34 246,356 125,111
Bank borrowings RITEE 35 1,512,135 1,094,000
3,623,230 2,304,672
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETFE 615,338 691,394
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 3,494,682 2,216,524
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBRRE

At 31 December 2012 R=—ZFE——%F+_-_H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—C—F %
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P& AR®T T ARETT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRHE
Share capital N 37 68,140 68,140
Reserves {1 38 2,098,908 1,679,656
Equity attributable to owners KAEHB AELRER
of the Company 2,167,048 1,747,796
Non-controlling interests JEVE R RE 459,140 253,657
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,626,188 2,001,453
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Deferred income PRI A 33 68,129 51,069
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 18 565 8,002
Bank borrowings RITEE 35 236,000 156,000
Convertible bonds AR ES 36 563,800 -
868,494 215,071
3,494,682 2,216,524

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 187 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhou Mingming
JE BB
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HiE —ZE—_—F+_HA=+—H

IHEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR ER
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory bonds to non-
Share Share surplus equity Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total  interests equity
EE  TRRES FERER
RE  ROEE  RHEE  ERRE  HEBE  REEA & EbREE  AER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:R
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-A-H 68,140 367,014 78,452 - 319,626 540,198 1,373,430 82,491 1,455,921
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EAFIER2ARALE

income for the year - - - - - 455,338 455,338 134,485 589,823
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEWBAR (Kitd)

(Note 44) - - - - - - - 35,227 35,227
Disposal of partial interest HE-FHELADI BE

in a subsidiary - - - - (716) - (716) 4421 3,705
Acquisition of additional interest  ZE—FHBARAER

in a subsidiary (Note) (Bst) - - - - 167 - 167 (2,967) (2,800)
Dividend declared by the RREERAKE (Wit14)

Company (Note 14) - (80,423) - - - - (80,423) - (80,423)
Transfer to reserves N1 - - 46,446 - - (46,446) - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZF-——E+ZA=+-H 68,140 286,591 124,898 - 319,077 949,090 1,747,796 253657 2,001,453
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FRFERZARAEE

income for the year - - - - - 496,328 496,328 123,606 619,934
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBLR (i)

(Note 44) - - - - - - - s18Tr 88T
Recognition of equity component  BRRA AREFNRATH

of convertible bonds (Note 36) ~ (F13£36) - - - 59,643 - - 59,643 - 59,643
Dividend declared by the KRAERNES (Hit14)

Company (Note 14) - (136,719) - - - - (136,719) - (136,719)
Transfer to reserves BAGE - - 68,068 - - (68,068) - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+ZA=+-H 68,140 149,872 192,966 59,643 319,077 1377,350 2,167,048 459,140 2,626,188
Note: As at 31 December 2011, Z# X188 /1 EI# B R 2\ E] (Anhui Yongheng — Wfst - R-E——F+ - H=+—FH Z#x

Power Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Yongheng”) is a 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Group. At the date of acquisition of Anhui Yongheng
by the Group on 31 May 2011, details of which are set out in Note 44,
Anhui Yongheng had a 60%-owned subsidiary named L& 188) 717}
#EMR2A] (Jiangsu Yongheng Power Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Jiangsu
Yongheng”). Subsequent to this acquisition, in September 2011, Anhui
Yongheng acquired the remaining 40% interests in Jiangsu Yongheng
from its non-controlling shareholders with an aggregate consideration of
RMB2,800,000. Upon the completion of this acquisition of non-controlling
interest, Anhui Yongheng’s interests in Jiangsu Yongheng increased
from 60% to 100% accordingly. As Anhui Yongheng is a 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the effective interest of the Company in
Jiangsu Yongheng increased from 30.6% to 51% accordingly.

BB OB RERAF ([ZH#KIE]) A
REFFE1 % ESHINB R - K=
F——FF A=+ AREFWEZEH
KB (FEHRNF44) E H - ZHK
1BHH — XS B TE#KIEEIFHEEIR
2 A] ([JTEKIE)]) 89178 2 7]#960%
W o BEHWEE RZF——FN
A+ LK (B [ R FEFERR AR R BT #F
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#2,800,0007T ° K2 TH FE IR 1 25
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éIﬁv@ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & E —ZE——F+-A=+—HILFE

4= —=

2012 2011
—EF-=F —FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T ARBTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit before tax R % A A1) 752,471 710,881
Adjustments for: SR
Interest income FEUA 6 (10,796) (4,207)
Finance costs BB AR 8 91,044 42,971
Depreciation of property, WE - BERREITE
plant and equipment 15 116,982 61,242
Depreciation of investment KEYENE
property 17 747 747
Share of result of an associate JEAE—REEE N RIEE 20 19,620 -
Impairment loss recognised HE - BERRE
in respect of property, HRH R EE B
plant and equipment 15 - 4,107
Prepaid lease payments released FFABmMEMNEE
to profit or loss EQEE 16 3,219 1,626
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BER
plant and equipment HEEE 7 8,788 25,260
Release of government grants RIEE W AR E
from deferred income BT ED 6 (1,129) (475)
Allowance for bad and doubtful EUE 5 R A
debts on trade receivables RIZIREHE 7 4,982 4,977
Allowance for bad and doubtful H fth & K GRIEHY
debts on other receivables RIZIREE 7 1,770 152
Allowance for inventories GFERE 9 6,151 2,862
Provision for warranty REBERAG 34 341,034 175,964
Operating cash flows before EEESPHAIMLERE
movements in working capital mE 1,334,883 1,026,107
Increase in inventories FEEM (421,560) (237,400)
Increase in receivables, deposits JEUFIE « e NI A
and prepayments N (509,206) (271,742)
Decrease in amounts due from JE WS B R 7 R IRR
related parties 1,710 66
Increase in payables, deposits FENRIR - BEdZ e RTELR
received and accrued charges E=g==hi-b)li 636,247 320,609
Utilisation of provision for warranty B RREBEAE 34 (219,789) (130,799)
Increase in amounts JE 1~ 75 A 3 7 FOIRE N
due to related parties 2,018 776
Cash generated from operations LEMBEG 824,303 707,617
Income tax paid BT ATER (189,089) (147,044)
Net cash from operating activities KRBTSR S F 635,214 560,573
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2012 2011
—EF-=F —FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®TR ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BEERE
equipment (991,638) (501,707)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WM BB REE
property, plant and equipment Fritize (100,036) (108,424)
Addition to prepaid lease payments B30 & 2 IE N 16 (41,170) (47,474)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BENMKRE
plant and equipment FriS 518 3,256 1,427
Acquisition of interest in an Wi — KB A Rl R R 2
associate (34,000) -
Acquisition of interest in an Ui —EnEHERE
available-for-sale investment R 21 - (4,000)
Increase in a long term receivable £ HA FE U SR IE 3 A0 - (28,300)
Net cash outflow on acquisition Ug BE BT BB A B Ay
of subsidiaries Remt #F5 44 (53,047) (11,240)
Government grants received BT 4 B 33 18,189 34,715
Interest received BUF) 8 10,796 4,207
Withdrawal of restricted REZRHIERITER
bank deposits 910,791 222,766
Placement of restricted FREBRHIRITIFN
bank deposits (961,154) (873,492)
Purchase of money market funds ﬁ%ffﬁ%‘m%%i 28 (20,000) -
Advance of entrusted loan FEERE 22 (60,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities K& EZEFTARE 5 (1,318,013) (811,522)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT MR ESFTEHR
bonds 36 633,000 -
Payment of transaction costs on BT BRRESFNRS
issue of convertible bonds A ST 36 (25,135) -
New bank borrowings raised MERENIRITEE 2,140,845 1,090,500
Repayment of bank borrowings fa}g%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ (1,720,410) (318,252)
Dividends paid BETRR B (136,719) (112,923)
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ,% (102,331) (40,507)
Proceeds on disposal of partial HE—KMBARHD
interest in a subsidiary Hm CRBREEHRE)
without losing control FiSsk18 - 3,705
Repayment to related parties fa}@ﬁﬁakﬁa—y\ (45,799) (1,800)
Acquisition of additional interest in ~ EiE—XMEAQ b2
a subsidiary - (2,800)
Net cash generated from financing BEEEASE e FE
activities 743,451 617,923
Net increase in cash and cash Re KRB SEYILINFE
equivalents 60,652 366,974
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRENRESEEY
beginning of the year 844,750 477,776
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESNMRSFEY -
of the year, represented by bank NIRITHE R RIR B R
balances and cash 905,402 844,750
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 7 July 2010.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) operate (the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries). The Company is an investment holding
company. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 50.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
Amendments to Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) which have become effective.
IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
IFRS 7 (Amendments) Financial Instruments
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets
As part of the Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in 2012

IAS 1 (Amendments)

Except as described below, the adoption of the above
amendments to standards in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets in the current year. The amendments increase the
disclosure requirements for transactions involving the transfer of
financial assets in order to provide greater transparency around
risk exposures when financial assets are transferred.

The Group has arrangements with various suppliers to transfer
to the suppliers its contractual rights to receive cash flows
from certain bills receivable. The arrangements are made
through endorsing those bills receivable to suppliers on a full
recourse basis. Specifically, if the bills receivable are not paid
at maturity, the suppliers have the right to request the Group to
pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills receivable,
it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivable and the corresponding trade payables were included
in the consolidated statement of financial position accordingly
(see Note 30). The relevant disclosures have been made
regarding the transfer of these bills receivable on application of
the amendments to IFRS 7 (see Note 26).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

(as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to IFRSs were issued in May 2012, the title
of which is Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2009 — 2011 Cycle).
The effective date of these amendments is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to IAS 1 in advance of the effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

IAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement
of financial position). The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement or
reclassification has a material effect on the information in the
third statement of financial position and that related notes are not
required to accompany the third statement of financial position.

In current year, the Group has reclassified warranty provision
expense from distribution and selling expenses to cost of sales,
details of which are set out in Note 48, which did not result in a
material effect on the information in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 January 2011. In accordance with
the amendments to IAS 1, the Group does not present a third
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2011,
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ADOPTION OF

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments and Interpretation (“New and revised
IFRSs”) that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 1
Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to

IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12

Amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 27

IFRS 9
IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12

IFRS 13
Amendments to |AS 1

IAS 19 (Revised 2011)
IAS 27 (Revised 2011)
IAS 28 (Revised 2011)
Amendments to IAS 32

IFRIC 20

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle, except for
the Amendments to IAS'

Government Loans'

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities!
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9

and Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance'

Investment Entities*

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements’

Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities!

Fair Value Measurement'

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine!

NEW AND REVISED 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

o IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

o The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Currently, under IAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015 with earlier application permitted. The directors
of the Company do not expect IFRS 9 will have any material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group based
on an analysis of the Group’s investments as at 31 December,
2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces part of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deals with consolidated financial
statements. SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of IFRS 10. Under
IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance
has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

IFRS 10 is effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 10 have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and /or unconsolidated structured entities. IFRS 12 establishes
disclosure objectives and specifies minimum disclosures that
entities must provide to meet those objectives. The objective
of IFRS 12 is that entities should disclose information that
helps users of financial statements evaluate the nature of and
risks associated with its interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on financial statements. The disclosure
requirements set out in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. Significant effort may be required to
collect the necessary information.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
(continued)

IFRS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 12 may result
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS
13 are more extensive than those in the current standards.
For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for
financial instruments only under IFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets and
liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The Directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 13 may result
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than above,, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instrument
which is measured at fair value, and in accordance with IFRSs.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the equity of the owners of the Company.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity (other reserves) and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes
and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation was initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Deposits received from customers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statements of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less
any recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payment can be made
reliably, whilst the building element is classified as property,
plant and equipment or investment property, as appropriate,
interest in leasehold land is accounted for as an operating lease
and presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are
presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (its functional currency, i.e. RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Government grants related to depreciable
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets. Other government grants are recognised as
revenue over the periods necessary to match them with the costs
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefits schemes in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and the deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. When current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Research and development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
directs labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount.An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: available-for-sale investments (“AFS”) and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determinded at the
time of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, of which interest income is included in other
income.

Loan and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, bills receivable, other
receivables, loans receivable, amounts due from related parties,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect
of impairment loss on loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group classified money market funds and
certain unlisted equity security as available-for-sale investments
on initial recognition of those items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

Money market funds held by the Group that are classified as
AFS and are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in fair value of money market funds are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

For AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each of the reporting periods
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of
15 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade payables,
bills payable, other payables, amounts due to related parties
and convertible bonds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the convertible bonds into equity,
is included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible bonds (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
goodwill is RMB49,447,000 (2011: RMB25,628,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

Estimated impairment of receivables

Trade receivables, other receivables and loan receivable are
measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit and loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of receivables (continued)

In making the estimates, management considered detailed
procedures have been in place to monitor this risk. In estimating
whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration the ageing status and
the likelihood of collection. When there is objective evidence
of impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012,
the aggregate carrying amount of trade, other receivables
and loan receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts),
was approximately RMB511,014,000 (2011: RMB298,970,000).
Details of movements of allowance for trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 22, 24 and 27
respectively.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2012, deferred tax assets of RMB123,568,000
(2011: RMB78,450,000) in relation to allowances for doubtful
debts and inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision,
tax losses and other temporary differences have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses of RMB13,975,000 (2011: RMB688,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisation of
the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
more or less than expected, a material adjustment of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which such an adjustment takes place. Details
of deferred taxation are disclosed in Note 18.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment, as disclosed in Note 15. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual value and
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and keen competitions from competitors.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
residual value or useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete assets.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
being lower than its carrying amount. As at 31 December
2012, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
RMB2,274,743,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of nil)
(2011: RMB1,145,711,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
of RMB4,107,000)). Details of movements of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss are disclosed in Note 15.

Warranty

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months on all
lead-acid motive battery products. Under the terms of warranty,
the Group undertakes to repair or replace the battery free of
charge in the event of any malfunctioning within the warranty
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the
time of sale and are based upon past warranty claims and unit
sales history and adjusted as required to reflect actual costs
incurred, as information becomes available. As at 31 December
2012, the Group recognised provision for warranty amounted
to RMB246,356,000 (2011: RMB125,111,000) and details are
disclosed in Note 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales
of motive batteries. The Group’s revenue represents the amount
received and receivable for sale of motive batteries during the
year.

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The information reported to the executive directors
of the Company, who is the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, does not contain profit or loss information of each
product line and the executive directors reviewed the gross profit
of the Group as a whole reported under the relevant accounting
policies and financial regulations in the PRC (the “PRC GAAP”),
which is the same as the gross profit reported under IFRSs.
Therefore, the operation of the Group constitutes one single
operating segment. Accordingly, no segment information is
presented.

No segment assets and liabilities, and related other segment
information were presented as no such discrete financial
information is provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year
are contributable to customers established in the PRC, the
place of domicile of the Group’s operating entities. The Group’s
non-current assets are all located in the PRC.

No revenues from a single external customer amounted to 10
percent or more of the Group’s revenue during the year.
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(CONTINUED)

WARDHER (&)

An analysis of revenue by products is as follows: WAIRERAITIT
2012 2011
—B-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Lead-acid motive batteries SHERED 1 E
Electric bikes battery EEFETEEM 8,543,436 4,669,096
Storage battery fHEEE M 42,779 13,920
Electric cars battery and special-purpose B85 Bt & 55k g
electric cars battery THEEM 734,139 170,094
Li-ion batteries SEEEF S 30,531 565
Materials include lead and active additives # % (‘@3E#5 &IE W) 208,554 78,336
9,559,439 4,932,011
OTHER INCOME 6. HMKA
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®EFTT
Government grants BT B
— grants related to income (Note) — B A BB
(%) 31,820 19,191
— grants related to assets (Note 33) — EHEEBBEMNEE
(Mi5E33) 1,129 475
Interest income FIEWA 10,796 4,207
Rental income He WA 1,287 1,230
Others Hh 4,456 1,597
49,488 26,700

Note: Government grants include various government subsidies
received by the Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government
bodies in connection with enterprise expansion, technology
advancement, environmental protection measures enhancement
and product development. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants and subsidies as at 31
December 2012.

et - BT 7 B 61 3% 2 (BT i B 1A
2B KT 2 AR A B 2
LREERE - EAFIR  RERE
HE 8 (E R E op ] B F ST
HH o RZFE—ZF /=
T—H - ZEFE) R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

7. OTHER EXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES 7. HutpxRHEAMER
2012 2011
—B-=F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T AREFTT
Exchange loss EREX 8,860 1,236
Loss on impairment of property, M - BEREHED
plant and equipment (Note) REBE (M) - 4,107
Loss on disposal of property, plant and TEDE WEK
equipment RiEHEE 8,788 25,260
Depreciation of investment property WEMERNITE 747 747
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts U E 5 R RIZ R
of trade receivables 4,982 4977
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts b UG FhTE R I BR
of other receivables 1,770 152
Acquisition-related cost B BE 22 IA A5 B M RS 473 291
Relocation-expense idilha 1,932 -
Others Hh 3,116 262
30,668 37,032
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, one of the Group’s Wit REBEEZ-—F——F+=-A=+
subsidiaries upgraded its production process and hence, —HILFE  NEFH—FHE
relevant idle equipment with carrying amount of approximately RAJEARLEETLS @ Bt
RMB4,107,000 were fully impaired. BRETE#IA R #4,107,0007T &9
TEBRIEREE (L 220718 -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERK
2012 2011
—E-C—F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Interest expenses on: FERX :
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAFATBEEED
within five years HRITIEE 111,119 42,971
Effective interest expense on the ARTRRESFHER
Convertible Bonds (Note 36) FE (K17E36) 15,578 -
Total borrowing costs BERAER 126,697 42 971
Less: amounts capitalised in construction 3§ : REZE TP ER(L
in progress G| (35,653) -
91,044 42,971
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December REBEEZE-_T——_F+_HA=+—H
2012 arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by IEFEARFTER 2 EERKRTR
applying a capitalisation rate of 6.79% per annum to expenditure BE—REESE THAEREER
on qualifying assets. X6.79%MERMbFFELEFHE o
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10.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. KREAIFE
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: B ATAE 2 0k TAIFIA -
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Wages and salaries TERF® 388,808 172,561
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R K1E F 5t 2 ¢ 7 12,578 6,220
Labour cost (Note) AT RO (FisE) 211,238 195,454
Total staff costs BIXAMEE 612,624 374,235
Cost of inventories recognised as expense &R A X HFEM A 7,257,936 3,311,560
Allowance for inventories (included in FEaiE G ABEERAK)
cost of sales) 6,151 2,862
Prepaid lease payments released to SFABGHTENAERIE
profit or loss 3,219 1,626
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET IS 3,279 2,650
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -« BENMREITE
equipment 116,982 61,242

Note: The Group has entered into various labor dispatch agreements
with several service organisations which have provided labor
service to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the

A5 (B 2 51 15 AN AE [ 1R 1 5
TIRFEAIIRFHEET L5 TR

10. EEfS
AEBRENAAATEE LW

Company during the year are as follows: BB T ¢
Salaries  Contribution
and other to retirement
benefits- benefit
Fees in-kind scheme Total
FeRHEAM BREF
ik BNEF T &It A&t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARBFT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2012 HBE-T——F+-H
=t+—HLEE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note) BB E (i) - 924 15 939
Mr. Zhou Longrui AEREE - 418 - 418
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZLT - 405 - 405
Mr. Yang Xinxin D Fik v - 2,277 15 2,292

~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &}

ET-F—

“F+A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

10. E=M< (&)

Salaries  Contribution
and other to retirement
benefits- benefit
Fees in-kind scheme Total
FeRHEAM BHREF
e BENEF T B &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Ms. Deng Xihong HEait 200 - - 200
Mr. Ng Chi Kit RBGEE 200 - - 200
Independent non-executive BUFEMITES -
directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR AE 200 - - 200
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BRI 200 - - 200
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FRELE 200 - - 200
Total st 1,000 4,024 30 5,054
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-T——F+_A
=T-HLLFE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note) ERBREE (M) - 1,141 13 1,154
Mr. Zhou Longrui BiEmiE - 442 - 442
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZLT - 496 - 496
Mr. Yang Xinxin (appointed O LiE b
on 16 August 2011) (RZ2—FNA
TRBEZE) - 956 6 962
Non-executive directors: FERTEE:
Ms. Deng Xihong Meazt 200 - - 200
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REREE 200 - - 200
Independent non-executive BUFMTES -
directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR LA 200 - - 200
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B B = 2 200 - - 200
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FEEEE 200 - - 200
Total et 1,000 3,035 19 4,054

Note: Mr Zhou Mingming is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above also include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.
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11.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year,
included three directors (2011: three directors), details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
two individuals for the year (2011: two individuals) are as follows:

11.

AEBREHATHHE

FR AEENOAERESFAL
AR=FFF(ZT——F: =%
E=) HM2FBER LEX - F
N BTIMEAL(ZE——F:
MEAL) ST

2012 2011

=E-=F —T——%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBEFIT

Salaries and other allowances Fre M EMERL 1,320 1,357
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR (K& FI|EH 24 2% 10 20
1,330 1,377

The above employees’ emoluments were within the following
bands:

biirEMEEIATHE :

Number of individuals

ATEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the
Company waived any emoluments during the year.

TR AEBEYERNARREERK
hEREHFALNME - ERN
AP DA 62 (3 B 1) 22 R sl 1
BEE- FR BERXQRTDEEN
ZEMAME -

~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiBBiRAX
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETF T AR®EFTT
The charge comprises: XHEBLE
PRC current income tax FR B BN BT ISR 183,321 149,958
Deferred tax (Note 18) EEFLTE (M5E18) (50,784) (28,900)
132,537 121,058
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise BIECPEAREMBECEMSEM
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EVIEMBRIE] MEEMSE
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 BEBHED  DEMB A/
January 2008 onwards. On 26 December 2007, the EIT Law’s MER-_ZZNF-—H—HER
Detailed Implementation Rules and the details of the transitional 25%°c —EE+FEFT A=+
arrangement were promulgated. They contemplate various B BEEERBMEEMSHESR
transition periods and measures for previous preferential tax WARB KB E T RS o sz S AE
policies, including a grace period of a maximum of 5 years until KL e RIEET B - B4
2012 for the enterprises which were entitled to a lower income ZEGBEHEER  BERRE
tax rate under the previous tax law and continued implementation NEFREZBREM SR END
of preferential tax treatment with a fixed term until the expiration EEPfE_ZT——_FIIERENF
of such fixed term. In addition, the EIT Law provides that BMERRE - WA E E HIR RS AE
qualified dividend income between two “resident enterprises” BERBRIEREA  BEERZETHR
that have a direct investment relationship is exempted from EmAalL o N DEERIEAR
income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be subject to a 5% T OMERBEEEREEEDNE
to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the domestic Ri¥] 2HBNEEEREBA -
law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at 10%. FERRITER o BRI ASN - IRIER
During the year ended 31 December 2012, withholding tax on EGELHBEAER - REBENT
intra-group dividend amounting to RMB20,445,000 (year ended S5E10% TSR T R B MBI -
31 December 2011: RMB2,722,000) was paid by the Group to BBl A% E A RI0%H B R &
relevant tax authorities. MBI - RBEZT—ZF+=
A=+—HLHFEE FEEEMHE
ERNRHEREMEBHBHEASL
7807 A R #20,445,0007T (&
E-FT——9F+-_A=+—HItF
€ : AR¥2,722,0007T) °
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the
Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High Technical
Enterprise was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15%. &
BHEEEIRAER A (Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui
Chaowei”) was recognised as New and High Technical
Enterprises on 11 November 2009 for 3 years in accordance with
the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was subject to income
tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2009 to 2011. Anhui Chaowei was
recognized as New and High Technical Enterprises again on
31 October 2012 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable
enterprise income tax law of the PRC and was subject to income
tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2012 to 2014.

TERBEEIRAR QA (Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) was
recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 13 June
2010 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of
the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15%
from 2010 to 2012.

HBEERARR A A (Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) (“Chaowei Power”)
was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 30
December 2011 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable
EIT Law of the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax rate
of 15% from 2011 to 2013.

T EBEERER AR (Henan Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) was
recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 28 July
2011 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of
the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15%
from 2011 to 2013.

IR BEERAER AR (Shandong Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.)
was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises in
accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and
obtained an approval from local tax authority on 1 January 2013
that the income tax rate was reduced to 15% for the year ended
31 December 2012.

12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FiSBimx (&)
Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to HE-_Z——F+-_H=1T—H1
income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2012 FERPEKIHEMIEAQ
(2011: 25%). The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in BTSRRI R B25% (ZF ——
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Hong Kong had no assessable F:25%) RARIRENEE#
profits since their incorporation. RRBEE ((REL£RAREE] K
BEBEMRINRE AR - B
PGS LA SR A0 8% i ER A A o
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled FRZHEBRAIAIRGEEE2EE
to the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of wmAPHRTATFESERNOT
comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Profit before tax e 7 B AR 752,471 710,881
Tax at the applicable income tax rate RERMEHHER25%:T 8
of 25% HY R I8 188,118 177,720
Tax effect of income tax credit granted EENEINGIE sl
to subsidiaries in research and e R PSR R
development expenditure Higw & (18,118) (6,906)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAMBRAZ OB KR 6,124 5,403
Effect of preferential tax rates on income EEMREREETHE QA
of certain subsidiaries WA RS2 (65,201) (67,954)
Decrease in opening deferred tax RERHRERLS
assets resulting from a decrease FUERERIAE ERL
in applicable tax rate 284 2,559
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized AERBIAEENTRIETE 3,322 172
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate {5 — K E & A RIBIER
PACEZ 4,905 -
Deferred tax associated with withholding gt BB R &R DA
tax on undistributed profits of PRC A ERTENHIBEERED
subsidiaries R IE 13,103 10,064
Income tax expense for the year FRATERFREZ 132,537 121,058
The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in Note 18. FAREER B FBERAN T
18 -
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13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

FREF
AR B AR NG REA R
SEERF TR A T B

~

2012 2011
—E-——F —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®EFTT
Earnings B2F|
Earnings for the purpose of basic RERERZFMENEF
earnings per share 496,328 455,338
Effect of dilutive potential BB ST ER
ordinary shares: TRRNTE
Interest on the Convertible Bonds AR ES TS N/A
(Note 36) (Mf7E36) 15,578 TEH
Earnings for the purpose of diluted RETESREERNOEF N/A
earnings per share 511,906 TiEF
2012 2011
—E-—CF —T——%F
’000 000
TR FB&
Number of shares REOEE
Number of ordinary shares for REBRERZFHE
the purpose of basic TimRE e
earnings per share 1,005,290 1,005,290
Effect of dilutive potential BB s 2N
ordinary shares: TmRnTE - N/A
Convertible Bonds AR E S 40,438 NEM
Weighted average number of ordinary Mt E SR EEEF
shares for the purpose of diluted R AR INAE 15 £ N/A
earnings per share 1,045,728 NE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

14. DIVIDEND 14. KRE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Dividends declared for distribution FREMREANRE
during the year:
2011 final dividend — RMBO0.136 per —E——FRHRE -
share (2010 final dividend — RMBO0.08 FEAR®0.1367T
per share) (ZZE—ZFKH
&E — BRARE
0.087t) 136,719 80,423

A final dividend of RMB0.148 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012 has been proposed by the directors of
the Company and is subject to the approval by the shareholders

in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010

and year ended 31 December 2011 was paid out from the

Company’s share premium. In the opinion of the directors of the

Company, such distribution is in compliance with the Articles of

Association adopted by the Company and also the Companies

Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of

the Cayman Islands.
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15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% BERRE

N

Furniture,
Plant and Motor  fixtures and  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
B BE
BT  HEREES RE EEREE HEIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
COST A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-f-H 274,712 275,003 17,145 30,686 110,510 708,056
Additions RE 20,302 104,468 12,636 9,338 375,414 522,158
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBLE
(Note 44) (MfsEad) 63,141 26,094 1514 1335 11,321 103,405
Transfers EYN 192,196 80,646 - - (272,842) -
Disposals e (1,444) (40922) (291) (1,011) - (43,668)
At 31 December 2011 RZF-—F+2A
=f-H 548,907 445,289 31,004 40,348 224,403 1,289,951
Additions NE 35,253 399,490 24973 38,060 637,939 1,135,715
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBLE
(Note 44) (Fystad) 79,235 36,683 6,386 1561 1525 125,390
Transfers EN 334,993 68,521 - - (403,514) -
Disposals e (953) (30,853) (3,680) (688) - (36,174)
At 31 December 2012 RIE-ZE2A
=t-H 997,435 919,130 58,683 79,281 460,353 2,514,882
DEPRECIATION AND WERHE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-f-H 32,190 43018 6,244 12,933 - 94,385
Provided for the year FREE 19,087 31,880 4,310 5,965 - 61,242
Impairment loss recognised RERBREHEER
in profit or loss - 4,107 - - - 4,107
Eliminated on disposals HERHH (95) (14,616) (235) (548) - (15,494)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——512R
=f-H 51,182 64,389 10,319 18,350 - 144,240
Provided for the year FREE 35,996 64,378 8,617 7,991 - 116,982
Eliminated on disposals NERHH (305) (18,525) (1,839) (414) - (21,083)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—%+-A
=f-H 86,873 110,242 17,097 25,927 - 240,139
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—5+2R
~ft-H 910,562 808,888 41586 53,354 460,353 2,274,743
At 31 December 2011 RZE——5+ZR
=f-H 497,725 380,900 20,685 21,998 224,403 1,145,711
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥%¥ - BERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than Lt BERIHENIER - K
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis ERETIEIN  HUERERNATF
at the following rates per annum: EEHRITE -
Buildings B 4.75%-9.5%
Plant and machinery 5 Kt 2% 9.5%
Motor vehicles B 19%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment B BIERE REE 9.5-19%
Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out EEANYME  BEREREOFE
in Note 41. BHAMIEE41 -
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FANHEERIE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
At beginning of the year REA] 128,878 68,816
Additions NE 41,170 47,474
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44) WEH B A aE] (Mi5E44) 30,492 14,214
Released to profit or loss as expense FFABRERMX (3,219) (1,626)
At the end of the year R 197,321 128,878
2012 2011
—B-=F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFTT
Prepaid lease payments related to Bt RAENANEE
land use rights analysed for FRIATLER ¥R A &Y
reporting purposes as: DA
Current assets MENVEE 4,114 2,671
Non-current assets EREEE 193,207 126,207
197,321 128,878
130 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited R &) hiZRER A 7



16.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was in the process
of obtaining land use right certificates for the land in the PRC
amounting to approximately RMB44,340,000 (31 December
2011: RMB12,408,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy
and use the above-mentioned land use rights and not required
to incur significant additional cost in obtaining the land use right
certificates for the land in the PRC.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

16.

FEMNEERE (&)

MRS BB RE - NEBIE AN
R BEELH AREA44,340,0007T
(Z2E—F+ZA=+—H: A
R #12,408,0007T) #) 1 Hb 9% 3 <&
Mt EAEINFE -  ARRE
ERE AEBEESEZRBRM
EERER LR FERE  BfE
AL A AP B A 1 b 48 BY - b {5 R A
BREHEELEIERER o

REBNENEERARRE

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFTT
Land outside Hong Kong: BBELAINTH -
Medium-term lease HEAFE S 197,321 128,878

Details of land use rights pledged are set out in Note 41.

EER T RENFIEEHNN T
41

~
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17. REYx
RMB’000
ARBFT
COST R
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and RZE——F—F—H ZF——F
31 December 2012 +ZA=F+—HBEkR=Z—=F
+=-A=+—H 10,651
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 R-ZFE——%—H—H 1,494
Provided for the year FREE 747
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+-_A=+—H 2,241
Provided for the year FREE 747
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H 2,988
CARRYING VALUES BRME{E
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZE——F+-_F=+—H 7,663
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H 8,410
The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 December REEREMER_ZT—Z_F+
2012 was RMB33,727,900 (2011: RMB35,145,000). The fair ZA=Zt+t—HHNRAFEAAR®E
value has been arrived at based on valuations carried out at 33,727,900 (ZE——F : AR
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, respectively, by #35,145,0007T) © A FE DR B
NG FEEFEERFAT (Huzhou Jinping Property Valuation HASEETABENELEEEE
Limited) (“Huzhou Jinping”), an independent and professional G ERMAMN & T & ETHEB
qualified valuer not connected with the Group. Huzhou Jinping (FAMEF]) PRIR =T —ZF 1
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the ZA=F+—HBRZE—F+=H
valuation of similar properties in the relevant location. The =T —HETHEEES - AN
valuations were determined by reference to recent market prices TEEEENR BB REH
for similar properties in the same location and condition. BRI R EETTE - BETD
2 Z R AR B BB U E R
BORTEETE o
The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line LI E Y L E 5 126.33% 1)
basis at 6.33% per annum. FERFRFE -
The investment properties are located on land use right in the ZEREMEMN P ERN AR E50F
PRC for a period of 50 years. KT AR o
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18.

DEFERRED TAXATION 18. EEBIIE
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and REBRFARBNELHIBEEE
the movements thereon, during the year are as follows: (BE) REZHHHMT :
Allowance
for doubtful Fair value
debtsand  Deferred  Accruall Tax adjustment Withholding
inventories income  provision losses Others  on assets tax Total
& EitHE/ BENLT
REERE  BEEHA BE REER ) Ea% ki gt

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTL ARETRL ARETR

~

RMB000  RMBO000
ARRBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2011 R=F-——%-A-A 1,272 4207 32,113 - 4505 (738) - 41,359

Acquisition of subsidiaries WERELR - - - - - 189 - 189

Credit (charge) to profitorloss A (115) &% 1688 4,995 26,544 1541 1585 (1) (7342) 28,900
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%12F

“+-§ 2060 922 58657 1,541 6,000 (660) (7349 70448

Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAF 233 - 65 - 1473 - - 1771

Credit (charge) to profit or loss A (H18) 8% (851) 3,260 40,649 5,462 (5,173) 95 7,342 50,784
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+ZR

=t-H 2,342 12,462 99,371 7,003 2,390 (565) - 123,003

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT RSB 7% R 3R A IE RE R TE 45 64

financial reporting purposes: ST

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Deferred tax assets EIEFR I8 E B 123,568 78,450

Deferred tax liabilities EETRIABE (565) (8,002)

123,003 70,448
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows:

ELER IR (&)
AEBRBANNEBEFEN
T

2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBFTT

Tax losses already recognised as EHERRBEERIBEEEDN
deferred tax assets TiIAE 18 28,011 6,163

Tax losses unrecognised for deferred BELEFIREERARER

tax assets TIAE 18 13,975 688

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB13,975,000 (31 December 2011: RMB688,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
RMB1,718,063,000 as at 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: RMB1,120,635,000). No deferred tax liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is
in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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REREEAR A R A - NEBATER
REE DI R RA R R E AR
THE B A ARE13,975,0000T (=
E——&F+-_fF=+—0: AR¥
688,0007T) © B3 741 AT F8 R 5K 2K A
AR - B EBIEE B ER
BIEFRIEEE -

PRI B AR RERELEHIES
BERR D IREFE SRR = 24
ERZE——F+A=+—84%
A A R ¥1,718,063,0007T (= &
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19. GOODWILL

19. BHE

2012 2011
—B-C=F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T ARETTT
COST R

At beginning of the year REFEH] 25,628 14,956

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries AU E R R mES
(Note 44) (KizE44) 23,819 10,672
At end of the year R 49,447 25,628

On 31 May 2011, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest
in Anhui Yongheng from independent third parties at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB40,139,000, resulting in
goodwill of RMB9,342,000.

On 30 June 2011, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
N RESERERAEMR AR (“Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power
Co., Ltd.”) (“Huzhou Changguang Haotian”) from independent
third parties at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB 1,234,000, resulting in goodwill of RMB754,000.

On 31 August 2011, the Group acquired a 51% equity
interest in I RESKEEIRBMRAF (“Zhejiang Changxing
Jintaiyang Power Co., Ltd.”) (' Zhejlang Changxing Jintaiyang”)
from independent third parties at a cash consideration of
approximately RMB®6,443,000, resulting in goodwill of
RMB576,000.

On 30 April 2012, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
SLEROKET R AR AR (Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Jiangsu Yongda”) from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB79,920,000, resulting in
goodwill of RMB23,524,000.

On 20 July 2012, the Group acquired an 85% equity interests in i
b5 T S IZFR R A PR A B (Qinyang Libiao Plate Co., Ltd.) (“Qinyang
Libiao”) from Henan Yifeng Electric Bikes Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd (“Henan Yifeng”, a related party of the Group) at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB53,730,000, resulting in
goodwill of RMB295,000.

—E——FHA=1+—H XxEE
IR RELH AR 40,139,000
THRBIYEZFKREZTHKE
S1%R Az TREEARK
9,342,0007T °

—E——HXA=1+H A&EHE
IE S REHARK1,234,0007T
HBLBE=FWHEBANRESR
BREARAE (BMNEEEXR]D
MR AERE TRHEARE
754,0007C °

—E——FNA=1+—H  AEE
B e R EH ARKG,443,0007T
WBIE=HRBEINIRESKEG
BRARAE (NI RESKE])

1% AtEs  HRABARM
576,0007C ©

“E-——HFPNA=+H AEBRK
HeRELHARKT79,920,0007TH#
B E = HWE T EET R
BRAR (DITEKE]) 60%[ A
B  BIREE ARK23,524,000
T e

—T——FtA-1+H AEEE
HeRELHARKS3,730,0007TH#
Al EEBEEEFR AR ([
s | REBE—ABER) K
BB ERRABR AT (DB
Z1) 85% AR - TR EAR
#2095 0007 °
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19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

19. BHE (&)

Goodwill
[EES

2012 2011
—F-=F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARMBFTT
Auhui Chaowei LR 14,956 14,956
Anhui Yongheng ZRKE 9,342 9,342
Huzhou Changguang Haotian N R EE 754 754
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang AL R E e K5 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda TLERKE 23,524 -
Qinyang Libiao NN AV 295 -
Total Bt 49,447 25,628

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out above
has been allocated to one individual cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
as the six acquired subsidiaries all engaged in manufacturing
of motive batteries or accessories of motive batteries. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment of its CGU. The basis
of the estimation of the recoverable amount of the above CGU
and the major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount has been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of
13% (31 December 2011:13%). The CGU’s cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 5% growth
rate (31 December 2011: 5%). The growth rate used is based
on management’s best estimation on growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on
the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount.
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~

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. R—MEEE QR WEDR
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —EF——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥ET T
Cost of an unlist investment JE EHRE B 58,000 -
Share of post-acquisition loss Wi 18 (G 518 (19,620) -
38,380 -
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had interest in the following BT —Ft+ZA=1+—80"
associate: REBBRATEEARESER

Proportion of nominal

value of issued capital

held and voting power
held by the Group
as at 31 December

Country of B2+t-A=1+-A%%K
incorporation/ BREBCRTRANEE
Date of establishment Fully paid-up/ KT REEHLLH
Name of entity establishment and operation registered capital 2012 2011 Principal activity
MR KILR
ERsH B3 B 5 EENER Bz /BEMBRE —B--F —T——F IEEH
% %
ARk B
AMIREERKIBRAF 2003 PRC RMB73,728,481  28.12% - Manufacture of
(MHrTiREe]) ZTT=F i ARE motive batteries
(Zhejiang Zhenlong Power 73,728,4817C HEHHEW

Co., Ltd.)
(“Zhejiang Zhenlong”)
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 20. R—HEEZE A ATNER
(#&)
The summariesd financial information in respect of the Group’s BEAEEBE QNN EE
associate is set out below: BEFImT
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETTT
Total assets BAEE 674,382 -
Total liabilities BEE (537,874) -
Net assets BEFE 136,508 -
Group’s share of net assets of the associate  ANEE(5HZ A TIH
BEFE 38,380 -
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 21. AIHHERE
2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBFIT
Unlisted investment: EETHRE :
— Equity investment, at cost — RAIRE - IR AE - 4,000
Note: The unlisted equity investment as at 31 December 2011 Wit R=ZF——FF+=ZH=+—H
represents a 20% equity interest in R EX2FR I AE] B FE_E TR A 18 & 75 RE A ]
(Changxing Chaowei Real Estate Co., Ltd) (“Chaowei RE”), a KT B RAA B 2R B 5 B %
private entity established in the PRC. It is measured at cost FRZE] ([ REEE ) £920%
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the B #m - AREERFERG
range of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant that the FTRVEEI A X -+ AR E]EFR
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair value B H A FET 58 A SEH 5T
cannot be measured reliably. £ WRAREIZK A EHF
R R0 e -
As the Group does not have power to participate in the financial AR K R R KRR
and operating policy decisions of Chaowei RE due to the - N IE B 2R
dominant control of Chaowei RE by its majority shareholder, B RAS & B R T E AR E T
the directors of the Company are of the view that the Group fE WA RBIEFRBAEE
does not have significant influence over Chaowei RE. As HRAEABRHIWEEANZE - A
such, the investment in Chaowei RE is accounted for as an Ut R L B A 1 & E A AT
available-for-sale investment. B EREAAR -
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21.

22,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2011, an amount of RMB28,300,000 was due
from Chaowei RE, details of which are set out in Note 27.

INVESTMENT

In June 2012, the Company disposed its entire equity investment
in Chaowei RE to the majority shareholder of Chaowei RE at a
consideration of RMB4,000,000. The consideration receivable
of RMB4,000,000 together with the amount due from Chaowei
RE of RMB28,300,000 were both transferred to deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment for purpose of
purchasing of properties developed by Chaowei RE.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

Chaowei Power, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. (the “Lending Agent”), a fiduciary company incorporated
in the PRC, on 17 December 2012 (the “Entrusted Loan
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Chaowei Power, through the
Lending Agent, will provide the entrusted loan of RMB200
million (the “Entrusted Loan”) to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co.,
Ltd (“Chisen Electric”), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability which was held as to 98% by Zhejiang Chisen
Electric Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang Chisen”) and 2% by Mr. Xu Kecheng
as at the date of the Entrusted Loan Agreement, for a term of
three years.

The Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of interest of 8%
per annum.

Chisen Electric shall repay not less than 25%, 50% and 75% of
the outstanding principal under the Entrusted Loan on or before
the expiry of the 27th, 30th and 33rd months from the date of the
Entrusted Loan, with balance repayable in full upon expiry of the
Entrusted Loan. As at 31 December 2012, Chaowei Power has
released an amount of RMB60 million to Chisen Electric pursuant
to the Entrusted Loan Agreement.

The Lending Agent will charge a fixed handling fee of RMB2
million per annum to Chaowei Power.

21.

22,

AHHERE (&)

RZBE——FF+ZH=+—
H -+ JE W R FE 5 A & 58 A3 A
F #28,300,0007T + B i E
BRHKIGE27 ©

ZE—ZFNA AREEA
R #4,000,0007T #9 £ 18 7] <
BB EERF L ERARRK
BB A2 ERARE - JE
W 18 A K #4,000,0007T
7] FE W &= 5 B 5B A RS
28,300,000t ¥ 2 #2 # 73 W g
WE BERIEHATEZS
IR B2 B0 T 3t A B R
R ERAIYETIEL -

FEUR & =X
R-EBE——F+-A++8 XA
A—RE2EWBRARIBRER - &
—RAPEEMKAEERA
FEEIARETAR (BERAE)
R —HEERERME ([RLEX
WEl) - B BEERSERE
HREA—MRFBEKZAERA
AIERBERIHABRAR ([ERE
R (REFTEF MR B BHENT
ERERBABRLT (WIS
Mg D Bl FH98% Kk2%)
2t A R #200,000,0007T 8 Z 3£
ERx ([ZEER])  BE=F-

% ¥ 5 39 B 7 4 2.8%H0 T % Ui
E o

ERTERENETERBDHEFE
2718 A - #3018 A & %331 A 2
w2z Ak 2 BB E T L HR25% -
50% K 75%H E 5T E A T &
EBEXRSE  BEERNETERE
WERHEE #HE T ——F+
—A=+—H BREREREZ
AERMEAERERERARE
60,000,000 TH) & &8 °

EZREFF R EEEREEE
FEFEEARE2000,0007T °

~
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22.

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Guarantee and security of the Entrusted Loan

Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen would assume joint and
several obligations regarding the repayment of the principal
and interest of the Entrusted Loan, in addition to which, the full
repayment of the principal and the interest of the Entrusted Loan
would be secured by:

(a) a pledge of 98% equity interest in the Chisen Electric by
Zhejiang Chisen for a term commencing from the date of
approval of such pledge by the competent governmental
authority up to expiry of the limitation period for action by
the Lending Agent under (i) the loan agreement entered
into between the Lending Agent and Chisen Electric in
relation to the Entrusted Loan dated 17 December 2012
(“Loan Agreement”) and (ii) the joint payment agreement
dated 17 December 2012 entered into between Chisen
Electric, Zhejiang Chisen and the Lending Agent in
relation to the repayment of the Entrusted Loan (the “Joint
Payment Agreement”);

(b) a pledge of 100% equity interest in Zhejiang Chisen by
Fast More Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities, which was wholly-owned by
Chisen Electric Corporation, a Nevada corporation on the
OTC market in the United States, which was beneficially
owned as to 65.8% by Mr. Xu Kecheng as at the date
of the Entrusted Loan Agreement, for the period up to
expiry of the limitation period for action by the Lending
Agent under the Loan Agreement and the Joint Payment
Agreement;

(c) floating charges over the current and future inventory of
each of the Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen for the
period up to expiry of the limitation period for action by
the Lending Agent under the Loan Agreement and the
Joint Payment Agreement;
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22.

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Guarantee and security of the Entrusted Loan
(continued)

(d)

chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment of
each of the Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen for the
period up to expiry of the limitation period for action by
the Lending Agent under the Loan Agreement and the
Joint Payment Agreement; and

personal guarantee by Mr. Xu Kecheng, the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Chisen Electric, for a term of two
years from the expiry of the Loan Agreement and the Joint
Payment Agreement.

Other commitments of Chisen Electric

Chisen Electric has also agreed that, during the term of the

Entrusted Loan Agreement:

(a)

it shall not increase its registered capital or total
investment in any form unless agreed by Chaowei Power
in writing, except for investment into Chisen Electric made
by Chaowei Power;

it shall accept investment proposals from Chaowei Power;

Chaowei Power shall have the right to appoint one director
to the board of directors of Chisen Electric; and

it shall amend its articles of association to confirm the
director appointment by Chaowei Power.

The aforesaid other commitments undertaken by Chisen Electric

only give Chaowei Power protective rights rather than significant

influence over Chisen Electric. As such, Chaowei Power does

not account for Chisen Electric as an associate.

22,
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Raw materials R4 # 338,533 246,263
Work in progress p et Uar 974,647 581,634
Finished goods YRR Th 79,695 68,022
1,392,875 895,919

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24, BEREZERI
2012 2011
—2—=F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Trade receivables FEUWE R 290,897 245,556
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE (13,500) (8,518)
277,397 237,038

The Group normally allows a credit period of 15 days to its trade
customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales on cash
terms are required.

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the goods delivery date,
which is the same as revenue recognition date, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

AEE—RARZILERENEP
REIBANEEY  BRIHENUR
THETT °

KA RS REERE - RRE
BEBROEWE S RFHRE DT
BREBH (BRAERAR) 2
FIanR

2012 2011
—E-CF —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARMETT

0 - 15 days 0-15H 106,578 129,884
16 — 90 days 16 - 90H 130,966 87,598
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 24,101 14,981
181 - 365 days 181 - 365H 15,752 4,575
277,397 237,038

142 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited R &) hiZRER A 7



24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally
assess the credit quality of the potential customer and define
appropriate credit limits.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

24.

EWE 5 8RR ()
ERBETHELH - ARER
MFHERFOEHEAE  FEE
A ERE -

EREERTERRKESERANE
EE%x - BRR/KRIMBENEREE
MEWE ZEFEBRIFNERE
=

EEHMERBER K E 5 8RR
RO

2012 2011

—E-—_—F —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFIT

16 — 90 days 16 - 90H 130,966 87,598
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 24,101 14,981
181 - 365 days 181 - 365H 15,752 4,575
170,819 107,154

The Group does not hold any collateral over those balances
which are past due but not impaired.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counter parties and customers.

Impairment for trade receivables over credit period are provided
for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of
goods, determined by reference to past default experience and
objective evidences of impairment.

Details of trade receivables pledged are set out in Note 41.

AEBHZFEIHRERRENE
R A A AR o

AEBEWEYEESRRLEEKRE
EEhER  BROBMEAENR
ZHFREF -

AEBE2EBERRLERTER
BEE  ErHEEmN T A KE

FE - REBEERNERE SR
HEHERERAE -

EEHEKE ZRAF BN
410
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24, BWEZERX (&)

Movements in allowance for trade receivables during the year: FRNEKE SEFTEEES)
2012 2011
=F-=F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBFTT
At beginning of the year =] 8,518 3,541
Provided for the year FNEE 4,982 4,977
At end of the year FR 13,500 8,518
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the FEERWE S ERERNTKREIER
Group reassesses the credit quality of the trade receivables B AEEEHTHARHEER
since the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting EEREHEERBNEWRE R
period. Based on the historical experience of the Group, the REEEZR REFASENBEL
directors of the Company believe that no further allowance is 5 ARFIZEFHELEIFLE—

required. THRENTE -
25. BILLS RECEIVABLE 25. EWEE

2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Bills receivable e ZE % 1,001,359 736,614

The aged analysis of bills receivable presented based on the
issue date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RmE RS RE - BIRERIRS
H AR RRE AT T

2012 2011

—F-=F —T——%

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBFT

0 - 90 days 0 - 90H 387,335 565,378
91 - 180 days 91-180H 614,024 171,236
1,001,359 736,614
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26.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 31
December 2012 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing
those bills receivable to suppliers on a full recourse basis. As
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivable, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the bills receivable and the corresponding
trade payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
accordingly. These financial assets are carried at amortised cost
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

26.

~

EETREE
UWRhAEEEE -_T——F+ =
A=+ HEBZREEBRAEEN
m R 2 S RN E IR R
HEENSMEE - ANASEW
EERHEZEREREBEEENEXR
R\ B Ko Bl - H & 4 4B AR FE D B4R
A AR R N RN E
MEEEEMEENE SEMNKE -
HESMEERBHEN AN AER
AR & B IS AR R R AIER o

BE=—F-—-Ft=-A=t+—H
Bills receivable

endorsed to
supplier with

full recourse Total
L2mEREE
] {5t FE R 4t H Y
EWEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Carrying amount of transferred assets EEEERNREE 620,376 620,376
Carrying amount of associated liabilites BB EMNEREE (620,376) (620,376)

Net position FER
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26. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 26. HETHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2011 BE-ZT——F+=-A=+—H
Bills receivable
endorsed to
supplier with
full recourse Total
AREBEREE
M FE R A
M= #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Carrying amount of transferred assets EEREAEMNREE 263,926 263,926
Carrying amount of associated liabilites B#BEMNEREE (263,926) (263,926)
Net position JFER — —
In addition, included in the bills receivable as at 31 December o RZE—ZF+ A=+
2012 was an amount of approximately RMB180,139,000 (31 —A EBREBEBEHOARE
December 2011: RMB123,782,000) which was endorsed with full 180,139,000t (Z & ——F + =
recourse to third party suppliers as deposits paid for purchase of A=+—8: AR%123,782,000
machinery and payments for construction in progress. The Group L) MEEEBREEME=-FHE
continues to recognise the bills receivable in the consolidated AR ERBEMR M TIEe R
statement of financial position. BIRBRNR  XEEQEENES
BTG AR R AR IE U IR -
27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FA{RERHEMEWRIE
An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows: TET FRIE I H th & R IR 89 55 47 40
T
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®EFTT
Prepayments to suppliers TR pE P B RRIE 245,652 66,018
Other receivables H b fE U Fh I8 176,337 91,182
Less: allowance for doubtful R HA FEYRIERY
debts on other receivables R (2,720) (950)
419,269 156,250
Less: Amount due after one year W IERENEER —F1&
included in non-current assets EIEREYFIR - (28,300)
Amount due within one year TRENE E R —F A EI E
included in current assets SOERE] 419,269 127,950
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27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27.

28.

A RIE R H Ath B WK IR

(CONTINUED) (&)

An analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAi EUCRIEA AT
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
Value-added tax recoverable EEEt 135,627 45974
Other tax recoverable H b AT g [ 8 18 19,050 -
Prepayments to employees A E B /IE 12,664 7,649
Due from Chaowei RE (Note) JEY R AR E A B (FsE) - 28,300
Others HAith 8,996 9,259
176,337 91,182

Movements in allowance for other receivables during the year:

FR- EMEKRKEREGEE S

T
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
At beginning of the year REY] 950 798
Provided for the year FNEAE 1,770 152
At end of the year FR 2,720 950

Note: The amount due from Chaowei RE was transferred to deposits
paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, details of

which are set out in Note 21.

MONEY MARKET FUNDS 28.

The balance represents investment in money funds of Agricultural
Bank of China Limited. These investments are redeemable
based on price quoted by the counterparty bank which is the
issuer of the funds and are carried at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

WIEE - JEM R B B Y 3 R BB
WrEYM % - BB RREHNE
& BEFERRT2T

ERTmEES

ZREBHARRPBERERITRNA
RAREEESHKE - IWEFRE
ARBEHE /ESBRITANH T
RITAAMERBOW RS RE AR

BAFEIIR -
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29.

30.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the
Group by banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.35%
per annum as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 0.50%).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which are held
with banks and carry interest at prevailing market rate.

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2012 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles
its trade payables within 30 days from the material receiving
date.

Included in the balance of trade payables as at 31 December
2012 of RMB620,376,000 (31 December 2011: RMB263,926,000)
aged within 180 days has been settled by endorsed bills
receivable but not matured at the end of the reporting period
(See Note 26).
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30.

31.

TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 30. ENEZERM (&)
The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the RIFEHBERE - BRHE SRR
material receiving date at the end of the reporting period is as BEMEKE BRSO
follows: K
2012 2011
—B-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFTT
0 — 30 days 0-30H 357,119 196,981
31 - 90 days 31-90H 341,856 124,903
91 — 180 days 91-180H 482,012 220,417
181 — 365 days 181-365H 53,900 15,666
1 -2 years 1-24F 34,753 29,859
Over 2 years B2MF 2,084 138
1,271,724 587,964
BILLS PAYABLE 31. ENERE
The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue RFEHREERE - BNEEIZE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BB EBRE ST T
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARMBFIT
0 - 90 days 0-90H 5,000 18,440
91 — 180 days 91-180H 3,460 19,200
8,460 37,640

All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within

six months from the issue date.

FIERNEEHBRZMEE LR
B HRENEA QR -

N
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32. OTHER PAYABLES 32. HiENFIA
An analysis of other payables is as follows: HMERNFIESWIAT
2012 2011
—B-=F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T ARMBFTT
Deposits received from distributors o 3K 7 e oAt 7 T W ER Y
and others %e 78,589 45,022
Accrued commission et e 76,180 102,678
Other payables Hith B~ 008 91,369 74,832
Advance from customers AR FRIE 207,480 144 636
Accrued payroll and welfare ezt & R@ER 64,560 35,409
Other tax payables Hih I FIE 3,782 10,882
521,960 413,459
33. DEFERRED INCOME 33. EZEWA
Arising from
government
grants
REBUF#BY
RMB’000
ARBFT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 16,829
Additions INE 34,715
Release to income (Note 6) A (FI5E6) (475)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-_A=+—H 51,069
Additions INE 18,189
Release to income (Note 6) AU (FF5E6) (1,129)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 68,129
Deferred income arising from government grants represents the R B U 6 B B0 IE YA FE h M B
government subsidies obtained in relation to the acquisition of FEBEERARRA G ([AFEB
land use right of ;A FBEEIREGR AR (Henan Chaowei Power B ) - THOKE ROTFET B E) 1 68
Co., Ltd.) (“Henan Chaowei”), Anhui Yongheng and )T a7 &) BRBAERAR (DIEFELD B
NEEREHE AR AR (Jiangxi Xinwei Power Energy Technology + (5 RS RIS S
Co., Ltd.)("Jiangxi Xinwei”), respectively, which were included B - LA BT TS YRR E A BE AR IT
in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred WA - AR AR+ (R AE
income and credited to profit or !oss on a straight-line basis over TR A o
the lease term of the land use right.
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34.

35.

~

PROVISION 34. BB
2012 2011
=F-=F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T ARBFTT
At beginning of year REA 125,111 79,946
Provision for the year FREE 341,034 175,964
Utilisation of provision B AEHE (219,789) (130,799)
At end of year E R 246,356 125,111
The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate REBHEEENBELARLER - &~

of the Group’s liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on
motive battery products, based on prior experience for defective

E.EﬁFﬁT@JﬁE/@FDDh{/\—'—
FEARBAAEEFNRERS

products. it e
BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITEE
2012 2011
—B-C=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
Secured bank borrowings BEHIRITEE 1,018,135 795,000
Unsecured bank borrowings ERIRIRITEE 730,000 455,000
1,748,135 1,250,000
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BRI TFHEENEE
Within one year —FR 1,512,135 1,094,000
More than one year, but not —F LN ETBBRSE
exceeding two years - 156,000
More than two years but not exceeding MFLA BT BBRF
five years 236,000 -
1,748,135 1,250,000
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR —FAEEL
within one year and shown E2IRREatE
under current liabilities FOEE] (1,512,135) (1,094,000)
Amount due after one year —F 125 HR 8 236,000 156,000
Total borrowings BEE
— at fixed rates —EE 1,217,135 707,000
— at floating rates Z B 531,000 543,000
1,748,135 1,250,000
Analysis of borrowings by currency: EEREEE DT
— denominated in RMB — UARKFHE 1,608,565 1,250,000
— denominated in Hong Kong — OB TTEHE ([EBT))
Dollar (“HK$") 139,570 -
1,748,135 1,250,000
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35.

36.

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging
from 3.58% to 8.88% (2011: from 4.02% to 9.84%) per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Interest on borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Floating interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates
ranging from 5.34% to 7.87% (2011: from 4.48% to 9.47%) per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are set out in Note 41.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 September 2012, the Company issued a United State
Dollar (“US$”) settled 7.25% Convertible Bonds due 2017
in an aggregate principal amount of RMB633,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The net
proceeds from the issue of Convertible Bonds are mainly used
to fund future expansions of production capacities of the Group,
the upgrade of production facilities, debt repayment, selective

acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.

The Convertible Bonds constitute direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company,
and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference

or priority among themselves.
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(a)

Conversion right

The conversion right attaching to any Convertible Bonds
may be exercised, at the option of the holder thereof,
at any time on and after 4 November 2012 up to the
close of business (at the place where the certificate
evidencing such bonds is deposited for conversion) on 17
September 2017 or, if such bonds shall have been called
for redemption by the Company before 24 September
2017 (the “Maturity Date”), then up to the close of
business (at the place aforesaid) on a date no later than
seven business days (both days inclusive and in the
place aforesaid) prior to the date fixed for redemption
thereof, or if notice requiring redemption has been given
by the holder of such bonds, then up to the close of
business (at the place aforesaid) on the day prior to the
giving of such notice.

The number of shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds will be determined by dividing the
RMB principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be
converted (translated into HK$ at the fixed exchange rate
of RMB0.8165 = HK$1.00) by the Conversion Price (as
defined below) in effect at the conversion date.

The price at which shares will be issued upon conversion
(the “Conversion Price”) will initially be HK$5.20 per
share, but will be subject to adjustment for, among
other things, consolidation, reclassification or subdivision,
capitalization of profit or reserves, distributions, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, dividend
adjustments and other dilutive events. In the opinion
of the director of the Company, the adjustments to
Conversion Price in those circumstances are all for anti-
dilutive purpose to protect the right of bondholders.

36.
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

154

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at the US$ equivalent of their
RMB principal amount together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon. All amounts due under, and all claims
arising out of or pursuant to, the Convertible Bonds, and/
or the trust deed (as amended or supplemented from time
to time, the “Trust Deed”) from or against the Company
shall be payable and settled in US$ equivalent of the
RMB amount only.

Redemption at the option of the Company

At any time after 24 September 2015 and prior to the
Maturity Date, the Company may, having given not less
than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the bondholders
and the trustee, redeem all, but not some only, of the
Convertible Bonds at the US$ equivalent of their RMB
principal amount together with interest accrued on
such redemption date, provided, however, that no such
redemption may be made unless the closing price of the
shares (as derived from the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange) translated into RMB at the prevailing
rate applicable to the relevant trading day, for each of
20 consecutive trading days, the last of which occurs
not more than 30 days prior to the date of such notice,
was at least 130% of the Conversion Price then in effect,
translated into RMB at the fixed rate of RMB0.8165 =
HK$1.00.

The Company may, on giving not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ notice to the trustee and the bondholders,
redeem all, but not some only, of the Convertible Bonds at
the US$ equivalent of their RMB principal amount together
with interest accrued on such redemption date if at any
time, prior to the date the relevant notice is given, at least
90% in principal amount of the Convertible Bonds has
already been converted, redeemed or purchased and
cancelled.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited BBE B HiZR AR DA

36.

TR ES (&)

(b)

(c)

REEE

BRIFfRLEED BB E
RBGERBERES - SRR
RABRASNEARER
THENXTERERLAR
AR ER A E
G R E S o AT RAE 75
K/ RIETERE (ETEE
Ak [MEERE]) B
TARBENOAERER
FTELA B RARAEK
B —PRME - ERABRSER
ARBEFENETNN RB

f&-

ARATRERED

R-_E—RAFHLA=-+MHH
% REHBR - ERESE
EARZTANEL R LRI0
BB #BiB60 R &Y mE %
A A BERF IR AR E A E R
CHENETEBMEZANE
ETEDEHNAE B
EWMIEI D AR ES -
R - BRIEFEAETHNER -
BRI AT IE R A M TRk
EF  BRHUKTE (kBB
R EBBERER)(BIE
AR S HERRITER
Hin s AREE) Ro0fREEE
RPH (H&EEBE—BTER
BIZEE DA A H B AI308)
ELAEERBRNBRKRE
REFN130% @ 1A R
0.816575=1.00/ 7T &Y & &
EEREBmAANRE -

FRZTARERFTEAE
£~ 4 7A30H 18 1 #B 3E60
HEBAE W iEE
AR B ERTE AR > Al
BRESZE VIO AT EE
B H e EhsiER &
8 AIARE A RER RS
REARBASENETLE
B LR EHRTEER A
F B - EE 2 ImIEE D
AT AR E S o



36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Redemption at the option of the bondholders

On 24 September 2015, the holders of the Convertible
Bonds will have the right, at such holders’ option, to require
the Company to redeem all or some only of the Convertible
Bonds of such holders at the US$ equivalent of their RMB
principal amount together with interest accrued to such
date.

Negative Pledge

The Company has, among other things, also undertaken
that, so long as any Convertible Bonds remain outstanding
(as defined in the Trust Deed), the Company will not,
and will ensure that none of its subsidiaries will, create
or have outstanding, any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien
or other security interest, upon the whole or any part of
their respective present or future undertaking, assets or
revenues (including any uncalled capital) to secure any
Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below), without at the
same time or prior thereto according to the Convertible
Bonds the same security as is created or subsisting to
secure any Relevant Indebtedness, or any guarantee or
indemnity in respect of any such Relevant Indebtedness
as either (i) the trustee shall in its absolute discretion deem
not materially less beneficial to the interests of the holder
of the Convertible Bonds or (ii) shall be approved by an
extraordinary resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of
holders of the Convertible Bonds.

For the purpose of the negative pledge as described
above, “Relevant Indebtedness” means any indebtedness
which is in the form of, or represented or evidenced by,
bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock, bearer participation
certificates, depositary receipts, certificates of deposit or
other similar securities or instruments which for the time
being are, or are intended to be or are capable of being,
quoted, listed, dealt in or traded on any stock exchange
or over-the-counter or other securities market.
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds have been split between a liability component and an
equity component in its initial recognition as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Liability component is initially measured at fair value
amounted to approximately RMB570,891,000, which
represents the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at
the prevailing market interest rate at that time applicable
to instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
with the bondholder redemption option but without
the conversion option. It is subsequently measured at
amortised cost by applying an effective interest rate of
10.55% per annum after considering the effect of the
transaction costs.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
economic characteristics and risks of the early redemption
options are closely related to the host debt contract of
the Convertible Bonds. Therefore the Company do not
account for the early redemption options separately; and

Equity component, which is equal to the difference
between the net proceeds received and the fair value
of the liability component, amounted to approximately
RMB62,109,000.
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The movements of the liability component and equity component
of the Convertible Bonds for the year are set out below:

N

36. WERES (&)

FA- ABREEFNRERD MK
AEDHZBESIAT -

Liability Equity
component component Total
=N BRI et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AR®BTr AR%¥TT
Convertible Bonds issued RZE——FNhLA=+WA
on 24 September 2012 BITR AR (E 5 570,891 62,109 633,000
Transaction costs incurred EERNR KA (22,669) (2,466) (25,135)
Interest charged during —E-—FAAZTWMNAEZE
the period from —E-—F+-HA=+—8
24 September 2012 to BB B AERFE (H5E8)
31 December 2012 (Note 8) 15,578 - 15,578
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——HF+_A=+—H 563,800 59,643 623,443

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds has
occurred up to 31 December 2012.

37.

HE-F——4+-A=+—8"
8L 4 6 0 o 61 AT R AR 5 o

SHARE CAPITAL 37. KA
The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows: RATIHIRE B O T -
Number
of shares  Shares capital
REHE &S
US$'000
FEx
Authorised: YETE ¢
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each FR%0.01E LA L B R
At 31 December 2011 and —E——F+-A=+—HK
31 December 2012 —E——H+_-HA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each FH0.013E TRy E AR A
At 31 December 2011 and —E-—H+-A=+—HK
31 December 2012 —EF——F+=-A=+—H 1,005,290,000 10,053
RMB’000
ARBTT
Presented as HER 68,140
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38.

39.

RESERVES

Reserves of the Group other than retained earnings include
statutory surplus reserve, share premium, convertible bonds
equity reserve and other reserves, which form part of the equity
holders’ equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries
established in the PRC, those subsidiaries are required to
transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation reported under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributing dividends to equity owners. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up previous year’s losses,
expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital
of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between
the fair value of the consideration paid/received and the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/disposed to
the non-controlling shareholders; (ii) equity-settled share-based
payment transactions entered into and fully vested before 1
January 2007; (iii) debt waived by a related party; and (iv)
paid-in capital of Chaowei Power transferred during the Group’s
reorganisation.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve is arising from the initial
recognition of the Convertible Bonds. On the initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using
the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
Convertible Bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
as convertible bonds equity reserve.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged during the year.
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39.

40.

~

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 39. E£REKER (&)
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which REBWEAEERBEFEY (B
comprising the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 35, the FREMEIBEENRITEE)
convertible bonds disclosed in Note 36, cash and cash MEF3eE M A MR ES Re Kk
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, ReEEEYRECERFEHRAN
comprising issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in RATIER ARG ER (ERBE
Notes 37 and 38, in the consolidated statement of changes in P5E37 38T B 1) B B TRR AN K.
equity. &) -
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on RNAFIEETHERNERER - 1F
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider REFN B EFERESK
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of AREBRERNEERR - RIZE
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group EMEBER  AEEHERIRN
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of BB BEIT R AR M2 B B I 15 LA F B
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as TR ER T E RS E AN -
the issue of new debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. €@MI A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =WMIAEH
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Financial assets TRIEE
Available-for-sale financial asset: AfHESREE
Available-for-sale investment, at cost AfHERE -
RAARE - 4,000
Money market funds E¥mIEE S 20,000 -
Loans and receivables: B R ERGRIE
Trade, bills and other receivables FEWE SRR - FEY
SR N H e kIR 1,285,032 1,010,261
Loan receivable FEM B X 60,000
Amounts due from related parties UG EER 3,285 198
Restricted bank deposits PR HIER T T_m 201,289 150,926
Bank balances and cash RITHBR RS 905,402 844,750
2,475,008 2,006,135
Financial liabilities TRaE
Liabilities at amortised cost: REHEKATENAE
Trade, bills and other payables BT E SR - B
SR S H A S FOR 1,526,322 848,136
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,748,135 1,250,000
Convertible Bonds ABRES 563,800 -
Amount due to related parties B EE S A 28,372 8,200
3,866,629 2,106,336
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €®WMI A (&)
(b) Market risk (b) TWIERRE
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial REBWEKEEZEEHERH
risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and SN SR T ) 2= B B ) B 7S
interest rates. [ZLBg
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to REBERZHT SRR E
market risks, nor the manner in which it manages and ERELFERRBAOS R E
measures the risk. gE o
(i) Foreign currency risk management (i) ERBEE
The Company with functional currency of RMB has RATIHIBEE®EA
certain foreign currency bank balances and cash REBETUETR
denominated in HK$ and US$, which expose the EILFTEMINEIRIT
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently EBREEE  48E
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. EEEINERR o &
However, management monitors foreign exchange S B B A0 & B ET SN
exposure and will consider hedging significant TEEDRINER o AT -
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. EEEERINER
EE A EEIIER
The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign PR E ML R
currency denominated monetary assets at the end E B LAINEETHER
of the reporting period are as follows: B EERTESZY
T
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMBFIT
Assets BE
HK$ BT
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 141,200 4,888
us$ ETT
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIR S 233,115 2,269
Liabilities afE
HK$ BT
Bank borrowings RITIE? 139,570 -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in
HK$ and US$ against RMB.

The directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rate is
5% which is also the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against HK$, there will be an increase in the
post-tax profit for the year of RMB61,000 (2011:
RMB183,000) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year
for a 5% strengthen of RMB against HKS.

For a 5% weakening of RMB against US$, there
will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB8,742,000 (2011: RMB85,000) and
there would be an equal but opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year for a 5% strengthen
of RMB against US$.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

162

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate loan receivable, fixed-rate
bank borrowings and the Convertible Bonds.
The cash flow interest rate risk of the Group
relates primarily to the restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of borrowing rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank borrowings,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash, the analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 27 basis points (2011: 27 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Market risk (continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk management (continued)

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
RMB1,427,000 (2011: RMB917,000).

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables, bills receivable, other receivables,
loan receivable, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and restricted bank deposits. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counter parties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than loan receivable as disclosed in Note 22, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
bills and trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
large number of counter parties and customers.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

164

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s loan receivable amounting to RMB60,000,000
(2011: nil) (see Note 22 for details) exposed the Group to
concentration of credit risk. The directors of the Company
continue to monitor and assess the financial status
of the counterparty, and they believe the exposure to
credit risk on this balance is not significant as the loan
receivable is guaranteed and secured, and the borrower
also undertook various commitments to enable the Group
to have reasonably protective rights.

The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is limited
because the counter parties are various banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
from time to time.

The Group relies on cash flow from operating activities,
bank borrowings and the Convertible Bonds as a
significant source of liquidity. At 31 December 2012,
the Group has available unutilised short-term bank
loan facilities of approximately RMB775,000,000 (2011:
RMB535,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of reporting period.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@ T A (&)
(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) (d) RBESEBER (E)
Total
undis-
Weighted counted
average cash
interest On 6 months flows Total
ratt  demand  orless 6-12 1-2 25 AEE  carrying

g EZX  6fA%  months years years H&HE  amount
ik 2 NT 6-128A 12% 255 By SREE
%  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2012 R-B-—#+-B=t-H
Non-derivative Histmas
financial liabilities
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EBRITRE 6.35 - 591,856 584,413 5117 83046 1264432 1217135
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 8 /71 6.47 - 218150 115,632 8635 163891 566308 531,000
Trade payables ENEHER 3585 1,232,425 35,694 20 - ari724 1271724
Bills payable fEHZE - 8460 - - - 880 8460
Other payables HipperEE 36018 150846 49436 838 - 246138 246,138
Amount due to related parties  EREERHFE 28,372 - - - - 28,372 28,372
Convertible Bonds miERESR 7.25 - 22,946 22,946 45,892 678,893 770,677 563,800
67,975 2,293,683 808,121 60,502 925,830 4,156,111 3,866,629
At 31 December 2011 R=F--F+Zh=t-H
Non-derivative FTEeRAR
financial liabilities
Fixed-rate bank borrowings ~ E&RITRE 5.91 - 434688 292,748 - - 727436 707,000
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 HTEE 6.26 - 124962 288458 156,556 - 569976 543,000
Trade payables R EHE 510 575,765 1,017 672 - 587,964 587,964
Bills payable JEfZE - 37640 - - S e0 37640
Other payables AfhEEE 25174 81517 115369 47 SR 2253
Amount due to a related party  [ER —4ABEHFE 8,200 - - - - 8,200 8,200
33884 1,254,572 707,592 157,700 - 2,153,748 2,106,336
The amounts included above for variable interest rate fis ) 2= 4 B B ¥ 5 BARE 45 2R
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change BWETHZEMHETHED
if changes in interest rates differ to those estimates of B FlUFBETESRE
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting B SEA R -
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@ T A (&)
(e) Fair value (e) 2~¥HE

The fair value of financial assets (other than money
market funds) and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:

TREE (REBTHEES
M) RERABEAFETR
BEBRRANEBEA AR
RRTREDNERE -

BT RARAEI - NAF
EERR SAVBHRRTS
REBEKAREN RS
REEMTRAGBHNEREE
HEENERES -

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
—E——fF —T——%F
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-8
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount  Fair value

SRE{E D¥E HRmEE D¥E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTIT ARETET

Financial liabilities sRaE
Convertible Bonds AR ES 562,350 593,587 - -
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41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEKH

RIRE R RE - NEEEARS
TEEFERRITRTARERITR
EREM - R REPHEERE
AREEEREENEEREEN

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
The aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group
pledged at the end of each of the reporting periods is as follows:

I
2012 2011
=F-=F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Buildings B3 145,667 103,554
Land use rights +xh fsh AR #EE 48,127 81,416
Trade receivables FEUE 2 BRI 143,900 -
Restricted bank deposits SRRFIBITIER 201,289 150,926
42. OPERATING LEASES 42, KEHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREAHEA
2012 2011
—E-CfF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBFTT
Minimum lease payments paid for REABRBYELLEHEE
the year under operating leases BENHSERERNK
for premises 7,238 5,133

R ERRERE - AEBERET
A RE R E R E R T At BAE fE i O
ARGEHERNFAENT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

2012 2011

—E-CF —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFTT

Within one year —F R 8,639 2,648
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF

(BREEEME) 24,594 8,460

33,233 11,108

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REHBENTIEREERAEETY
Group for certain of its properties. Leases are negotiated for XEMNNWES  BHOEMFERF
terms of 2 to 5 years. HEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

42. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED) 42.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned for the year ended 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB1,287,000 (2011: RMB1,230,000).
The property held has committed tenants up to 2015.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

KEHE (&)
AEBEERBEHAA
HE_Z——F+-_HA=+—H1t
FE MEHKBRANABARE
1,287,0007C (ZZE——F : AR
1,230,0007T) ° FFE KW EDEM
FAEM BEE-T—AFIE-

R E RS RE - ASEMEAP
TR REEEENHKETLOW
T

2012 2011
= —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Within one year —FR 1,460 1,230
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF
(BREBERSF) 2,600 273
4,060 1,503
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BAREE
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFIT
Contracted but not provided for EEEEER
— acquisition of property, plant — WIEME - BE MEHE
and equipment 258,572 291,325
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 30 April 2012, 20 July 2012 and 22 October 2012,
the Group acquired a 60% equity interest, a 85% equity
interest and a 51% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongda,
Qinyang Libiao, and &EYZESBR AR AR Changxing
Yueda Plastic Co., Ltd. (“Changxing Yueda”), respectively,
from independent third parties or a related party of the
Group.

Jiangsu Yongda, Qinyang Libiao, and Changxing Yueda
are engaged in manufacturing of motive batteries,
electrode plate dividing paper and plastic battery cases.
They were acquired by the Group so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s manufacturing of motive
batteries operations, to obtain a stable supply of quality
electrode plate dividing paper and plastic battery
cases thus improving the quality of the Group’s motive
batteries and satisfy the need for the Group’s business
development.

44, WEEHIE A F

(a)

RZFE—ZFWMWA=1TH"
—E-—ZHtEtAZ+HEZ
E——F+A=Z+=ZH &K
EBDRIABILE =T HA
SEN—BBEEEFRETL
BROKE  UBEMZE R R EE
EBRABRAR ([REY
#]) 60%[% N % % - 85%
P& A AE 25 Ko 51 % A% AHEES o

TLERXGE LB IR R R E
HEHEEBNEM  EE
REBRAREBERNE
E o ARBEREZERAT)
RUEBHBEABDNERNEE
X% BEGRENEEER
R BR AR AR N I 2B AR e
femert A Er B =M
BERmEAREEBER
AT e

Considerations transferred for the acquisitions: BB EEENRE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Jiangsu Yongda TLERKGE 79,920
Qinyang Libiao AR 53,739
Changxing Yueda R B 36,272
Acquisition-related costs relating to the above Hi |3t Y s B B O W B AR

acquisitions in an aggregate amount of RMB473,000 has
been excluded from the cost of acquisitions and have
been recognised directly as an expense in the current
year and included in the other expenses line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, details
of which are set out in Note 7.

KR & H AR #473,0007T
WEAAWBERA - GBS
BERNAFEEERERARA
X Wt AZEEEEBERE
WEMAS - BEFBEERL
MIEE7 ©

~
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“F+A=1+—HILFE

44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 44. WiEMB LT (&
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of WBEEREEAWERRE
acquisition are as follows: HMT
Jiangsu Qianyang Changxing
Yongda Libiao Yueda Total
SLERKE WiE L E REBZE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and mE - BER
equipment (Note 15) F i (MiEE15) 62,433 29,630 33,327 125,390
Prepaid lease BN EFE
payments (Note 16) (F¥&E16) 6,857 18,055 5,580 30,492
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEAE
(Note 18) (FtzE18) 1,759 12 - 1,771
Current assets MEEE
Inventories wE 58,131 7,476 15,940 81,547
Trade receivables W E 5 8RR 7,439 - 18,052 25,491
Bills receivable FREE 2,316 - 924 3,240
Amount due from the Group BN E B FIE - 3,747 14,628 18,375
Prepayments and BN RIEREAM
other receivables FEU Z 8 30,413 3,133 28,645 62,191
Income tax recoverable EEERES - 214 - 214
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LR 76,668 8,872 31,344 116,884
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables BB SRR (32,317) (7,713) (13,804) (53,834)
Bills payable ANESE (33,000) - (4,922) (37,922)
Other payables H it e 20 0B (2,050) (551) (23,628) (26,229)
Amount due to a FEfTIERKE— %
non-controlling FEIERR AR R IR
shareholder of
Jiangsu Yongda (40,721) - - (40,721)
Amount due to the Group BN AEBZRIE (61) - - (61)
Bank borrowings RTEE (43,000) - (34,700) (77,700)
Income tax payable RSB (874) - (265) (1,139)
93,993 62,875 71,121 227,989
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

~

44. WEHWEAR ()

(continued) (a) (&)
The aggregate fair value of receivables acquired A |t g B8 BT B A A FE IR
as a result of the above acquisitions amounting to RBEAFTEEEAARE
RMB58,080,000, which comprised trade and other 58,080,0007T + Bi4 #) 48 %8
receivables, approximates the gross contractual amount. HE EeREE5ENER
There are no contractual cash flows not expected to be N H A fE W GRIE - T8 BI04
collected. PRAIPEREHNESRE °
Non-controlling interests: IR ER
The non-controlling interests in Jiangsu Yongda (40%), RIE BB S BIERNT
Qianyang Libiao (15%) and Changxing Yueda (49%) BROKE IFIE AR 25 (40%) -
recognised at the acquisition dates, respectively, were B IR IEIE AR R ER(15%)
measured by reference to the proportionate share of EEHEIEEFEERES
recognised amounts of net assets of Jiangsu Yongda, (49%) + Th 22 & 1A )T & K
Qianyang Libiao and Changxing Yueda and amounted Z OB UBERRENES
to RMB37,597,000, RMB9,431,000 and RMB34,849,000, EFECHERTCET A
respectively. WLLBIEE B A
A K ¥37,597,0007T + A
R #9,431,0007T & A R #
34,849,0007T °
Goodwill arising on acquisitions: WBHEENEE
Jiangsu Qinyang Changxing
Yongda Libiao Yueda Total
SLERKE WG g RERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Considerations transferred BENE 79,920 53,739 36,272 169,931
Plus: non-controlling o e
interests 37,597 9,431 34,849 81,877
Less: recognised amounts of  J& : WBE AT 51 & E
identifiable net assets FERRDE
acquired (100%) (100%) (93,993)  (62,875)  (71,121)  (227,989)
Goodwill arising on WERELHEE
acquisition 23,524 295 - 23,819
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

44. WEHWEAR ()

(continued) (a) (&)
Goodwill arose on the above acquisitions because the Pt EREE TR S 0K
costs of the combinations included a control premium. ABIE—EEGEHREmE
In addition, the considerations paid for the combination Ao A MAHEZAHR
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit BER FaEEHmRE MR
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market ZAE AR - RET
development and the assembled workforce of the SERNMFEREBATNES
acquirees. These benefits are not recognised separately LE)NHFIE - AR ISR
from goodwill because they are not capable of being =T RE B 2N 5 @] 5 5 M fE B
separated from the Group and sold, transferred, licensed, NEBHE  HE HK -
rented or exchanged, either individually or collectively. AR A - A I By
BORER -
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is MELEFREEENRER
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. SR FEHIBRFRIE o
Net cash outflow arising on the above acquisitions: FRBBELENRESREF
o
Jiangsu Qinyang Changxing
Yongda Libiao Yueda Total
SLERKE WE L E RERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Cash considerations paid ENHRERE 79,920 53,739 36,272 169,931
Less: cash and cash o WENIRS &
equivalents acquired HeEEY (76,668) (8,872) (31,344) (116,884)
3,252 44,867 4,928 53,047
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year was a profit of
RMB2,236,000 attributable to Jiangsu Yongda, a profit of
RMB1,872,000 attributable to Qinyang Libiao and a profit
of RMB569,000 attributable to Changxing Yueda. Revenue
for the year includes RMB350,748,000 attributable to
Jiangsu Yongda, RMB21,168,000 attributable to Qinyang
Libiao and RMB31,000,000 attributable to Changxing
Yueda, respectively.

Had the acquisition of Jiangsu Yongda, Qinyang Libiao
and Changxing Yueda been completed on 1 January
2012, total group revenue for the year would have been
approximately RMB9,775,499,000 and profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB607,120,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the ‘pro forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had Jiangsu Yongda, Qinyang Libiao and
Changxing Yueda been acquired on 1 January 2012, the
directors of the Company have calculated depreciation
of plant and equipment acquired, the prepaid lease
payments and deferred income on the basis of the fair
values arising in the initial accounting for the business
combinations rather than the carrying amounts recognized
in the pre-acquisition financial statements.

44. WEHWEAR ()

(a)

(%)
WBEHAEEEENTE
F RN EEE R B ILE K
E/FE A R2,236,000
TT - KRB R/ R
A R #1,872,0007T &
BERENENNBARE
569,0007T ° & AU A 5 5l
BIERETIEHXENARE
350,748,0007T * 2K B b 5
Y E® AR 21,168,000
TRERARAGENARE
31,000,0007T °

fifd & W BB T FR ok 2 05
VERREHERZT—
ZF—A—HREK £H
RERBBERABLH R
A R #9,775,499,0007
mERFBNGEARE
607,120,0007T ° & & & &
EBHRHEBAZA - WIEAWE
WK -—E——E—H—H
T AEBERIERR
AR EEERE - T8
TERARIREENTEA o

(GESPAN: %7 S= DTN ZAVA £ 954
REWEER T ——F—
A—RWE  EEEAEE
B[ E ] YA K H B
RABEFCRBERNBE
BamrARMELEN A FE
SHET R RS KR mE i
& BNEERIEMELR
A T3 EAR B K B B 7
¥ A P RE R A BR E (B AT

At

ﬁo

~
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

On 31 May 2011, 30 June 2011 and 31 August 2011, the
Group acquired a 51% equity interest, a 100% equity
interest and a 51% equity interest in Anhui Yongheng,
Huzhou Changguang Haotian and Zhejiang Changxing
Jintaiyang, respectively, from independent third parties.

Anhui Yongheng, Huzhou Changguang Haotian and
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang are all engaged in
manufacturing of motive batteries. They were acquired by
the Group so as to continue the expansion of the Group’s
manufacturing of motive batteries operations.

44, WEEHEB LT (&)

(b)

R—_ZE——FRA=+—
H-—Z——%xXA=+H
rZE——FNA=+—
B AEESRRBILE=
7Y Lok E IR E
ER AT R E S K551%
P& 7 25~ 100% A% 78 3 25
T 51% M A fEas o

ZRoKE RN REER
T RES ﬁl%i’ME%@Jjj
BHMEE - ARBEWEX
ERRDNREBHERHNE
TRV EE R o

Considerations transferred for the acquisitions: B EEENRE
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Anhui Yongheng ZEKE 40,139
Huzhou Changguang Haotian N R B SR 1,234
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang DA N 6,443
Acquisition-related costs relating to the above B |-t W B 75 A A U B AR

acquisitions in an aggregate amount of RMB291,000 has
been excluded from the cost of acquisitions and have
been recognised directly as an expense in the current
year and included in the other expenses line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, details
of which are set out in Note 7.
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

44. WEHWEAR ()

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of hESERABRKEDRRE
acquisition are as follows: =
Zhejiang
Huzhou Changxing
Anhui Changguang Jintaiyang
Yongheng Haotian I RE Total
ZEKE WMRERX EW N @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and mE - WEREE
equipment (Note 15) (BtzE15) 73,951 16,608 12,846 103,405
Prepaid lease payments BNAERAE
(Note 16) (BtsE16) 7,909 2,849 3,456 14,214
Deferred tax assets EEMIBEE
(Note 18) (Bf3E18) 186 - 3 189
Current assets MBEE
Inventories wE 30,682 411 3,750 34,843
Trade receivables U E FER I 8,105 434 4,099 12,638
Prepayments and A FRE R EA
other receivables FEW A 5,898 1,561 620 8,079
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRES 18,095 1,449 17,032 36,576
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade payables ERE SRR (24,115) (8,770) (6,596) (39,481)
Bills payable IRES - (1,148) (6,000) (7,148)
Other payables H A fE 50 IR (34,231) (6,914) (4,856) (46,001)
Due to a non-controlling ERZRKE—%
shareholder of JEE R AR SR SRR
Anhui Yongheng (4,900) - - (4,900)
Due to a director of ENAAE—4
the Company EXF0E (5,100) - - (5,100)
Bank borrowings - due RITEE -
within one year —F N8 (16,000) (6,000)  (12,000)  (34,000)
Income tax payable FERH TSR (94) - (849) (943)
60,386 480 11,505 72,371

The aggregate fair value of receivables acquired
as a result of the above acquisitions amounting to
RMB16,832,000, which comprised trade and other
receivables, approximates the gross contractual amount.
There are no contractual cash flows not expected to be

collected.

B _E il ik B BT ER 15 /Y FE IR
HRERAFEEHAARK
16,832,0007T + 4 4948 5H
BE - ABEE SENER
2 E B IR IR o TR HA NN AR
TR EIMEHRERE °

~
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(b)

44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 44. WEKEB LR (&)
(continued) (b) (&)
Non-controlling interests: JEImRRRESS
The non-controlling interests in Anhui Yongheng (49%) MR AUEE B HIER 8 L&
and Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang (49%) recognised K18 FE4E P AE 25(49% ) KT
at the acquisition dates, respectively, were measured TE@ES KM IEEIREZS
by reference to the proportionate share of recognised (49%) * 12 ERLZHKIE
amounts of net assets of Anhui Yongheng and Zhejiang DI EE S K EEFE
Changxing Jintaiyang and amounted to RMB29,589,000 BRSPS
and RMB5,638,000, respectively. B8 2BHRAAR
#29,589,0007T & A R ¥
5,638,0007T °
Goodwill arising on acquisitions: IWEEELENEE
Zhejiang
Huzhou Changxing
Anhui Changguang Jintaiyang
Yongheng Haotian WIRE Total
ZHKE WMREER EPNC) @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TRT ARKETRT
Considerations transferred HERE 40,139 1,234 6,443 47,816
Plus: non-controlling interests Al : FEFE R #E 2 29,589 - 5,638 35,227
Less: recognised amounts of & : WA %R EE
identifiable net assets SFERER
acquired (100%) S FE(100%) (60,386) (480) (11,505) (72,371)
Goodwill arising on WEREENEE
acquisition 9,342 754 576 10,672
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44. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45.

(b)

(continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions: (continued)

Goodwill arose on the above acquisitions because the
costs of the combinations included a control premium.
In addition, the considerations paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of the
acquirees. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they are not capable of being
separated from the Group and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged, either individually or collectively.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow arising on the above acquisitions:

44,

~

WENEBAR (&)

(b) (&)
WBRELENEE (&)
Fii B e B T A BERK
AN B HE — A R s B T E
Ao AN LA BRI RIR
BER L2EERRR M
ZHE - AR - KRR
HEREEREATNES
LB FRIE - BRI EF
= aE B AR5 B 5 A m fE Bl
EBEE EHE- - HE -
AR AR - B U I B R
EH R -

MENSKWBELENEERE
At Al FAEHIBR TR -

LB BELENREREF

A8 .

Zhejiang

Huzhou Changxing

Anhui Changguang Jintaiyang
Yongheng Haotian MIRE Total
REKE WMRERX ENG) mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREBTRT
Cash considerations paid 2HEERE 40,139 1,234 6,443 47,816

Less: cash and cash o WENIRS R

equivalents acquired BeEEY (18,095) (1,449) (17,032) (36,576)
22,044 (215) (10,589) 11,240

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 45. FEFRERH

In June 2012, the Company disposed its entire equity investment

in Chaowei RE to the majority shareholder of Chaowei RE at a

consideration of RMB4,000,000. The consideration receivable
was transferred as deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment as it's made for purpose of purchasing of
properties developed by Chaowei RE.

RZZE—ZFXA AREEAR
#4,000,0007T 89 X, & 1A & B8 &
MEZWRRHEERREBEMNHE
HIRAEE - BFIRREDER K
BYE BERREMNES R
EHEEMREEE REBEAT
BROVIEMED
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. EBELRS
(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) EREHFEBRBEE
Name Relationship
=1 B
Henan Yifeng Controlled by non-controlling shareholder
] iy of Henan Chaowei
F A e R Y FE PR AR AR B 4%
MBI HREERR AR (DUmlzik]) Controlled by Henan Yifeng
(“Henan Yilin Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.”) FR)A] 7 Uiz U 42 )
(“Henan Yilin)
I KEBEEBABRAR ([HIKE]) Non-controlling shareholder of Jiangsu Yongda

(“Zhejiang Yongda Industry Group Co., Ltd.”)  JI&#RKEMIEIERAR R
(“Zhejiang Yongda”)

Zhejiang Zhenlong Associate
LR EE /N

RIIRBEBIRBER AT ([TRMNIKREE]D) Subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Xuzhou Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd.”) ATIREMMB A F)
(“Xuzhou Zhenlong”)

RER Non-controlling party of Anhui Yongheng
(“Wu Rongliang”) RO BRI IEER T

RS HE Shareholder of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Xu Shenglong”) AT IRBERIAR R

L Shareholder of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Xu Zhigiang”) AT IR BE R AR R

A Shareholder of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Zhou Xinfang”) AT IR BE Y AR R

FHER Shareholder of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Wang Shuliang”) T ¥R #E Y AR BR

et ! Shareholder of Zhejiang Zhenlong
(“Xu Zhongming”) AT IR BE R AR R
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) On 20 July 2012, the Group acquired a 85% equity
interest in Qinyang Libiao from Henan Yifeng, details of
which are set out in Note 44.

Except for the acquisition of Qinyang Libiao, the Group
has entered into the following significant transactions with
its related parties during the both years:

46. BEBEERIXRS (&)
(b) R-—T——Z+A=+A8"
2 [ T R U B U B0 1
TIES5%MAE RS « 5 B F
SRR 44 o

BRUREEIORB RSN - N E
RMEFENEEG/EET
I THERRS

2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Sales of goods HEEm
— Henan Yifeng — A Els & 2,186 234
— Henan Yilin — Az AR 10,481 1,345
- Zhejiang Yongda — I KE 7,887 -
20,554 1,579
Purchase of materials BEME
- Zhejiang Yongda — ML KE 99,398 -
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — IRINIRBE 92 -
99,490 -
Provision of the processing services 121 T AR 427 -
— Zhejiang Yongda — T AkGE
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EBER&EE
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBET T
Amounts due from related parties: FEULE BaxE S ZIE -
Trade nature 25148
- Henan Yifeng — Al 1E - 198
— Henan Yilin — A Eg lg AR 503 -
- Zhejiang Yongda — WIoKE 5,632 -
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — RN BE 700 -
- Zhejiang Zhenlong — IR EE 10,028 -
Total HEt 16,863 198

The amounts due from related parties were denominated
in RMB, unsecured, interest free and repayable within
one year.

RN BRETRIBBIAAR
KitE AEEM - 28K
R—FEREE -

~

Annual Report 2012 179




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+-A=+—HItFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

46. BEBERRS (&)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) EBEAHGEE (&)
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREBTIT
Amounts due to related parties: JE <G e sE 7 08
Trade nature 2514
— Henan Yifeng — A E IS I 1,544 -
— Henan Yilin — Az AR - 776
- Zhejiang Yongda — AT oKE 1,158 -
- Xuzhou Zhenlong — IRIMNIRH 92 -
Non-trade nature 3E%ﬁ%’|‘$f£
- Wu Rongliang RER 3,122 8,200
— Xu Shenglong (Note(ii)) — 1RBERE (BIREG) 15,009 -
— Xu Zhigiang (Note(ii)) — &R (MIFEG)) 3,683 -
— Zhou Xinfang (Note(ii)) — A5 (MizEdi)) 3,350 -
— Wang Shuliang (Note(ii)) — Eﬁﬁ (B 3E(iN)) 1,018 -
- Xu Zhongming (Note(ii)) B (FEE()) 940 -
Total HEt 29,916 8,976
Note: Hat
i. All amounts due to the related parties were denominated i. JE 7B B8 77 1950 8 LA
in RMB, unsecured, interest free and to be settled either ARKEE REL
on demand or within one year. - BEREBEEKS
R—FRIEE o
i The amounts represent the outstanding consideration ji. ZEAEIEFETHT R
payable to former shareholders of Zhejiang Zhenlong BE BT % R #9145 K 35 A7
with an aggregate amount of RMB24,000,000 arising from g BEAEARKE
acquisition Zhejiang Zhenlong, details of which are set 24,000,0007T » 3 d 78
out in Note 20. W BT T R B T = 4
FHIEERHT20
(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d FEEBEAENME
2012 2011
—E-—F —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Short term employee benefits HHEEREF 7,197 6,619
Retirement benefits
scheme contributions RIREFIFT B 5K 7 66
7,268 6,685
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47.

48.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 47. BB EHX
CONTRIBUTIONS
The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members RARFEMBAREES AP
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by BT E R B SRR AE IR B H R
the PRC government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are 8o ARaFEIMEAREZES
required to contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ FEETEO L RZEREFGE
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. HRLMERBMNE S - FEELIR
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement KiEHET &l g — B E R REZE
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under EMELFTRHI - HARDEZEESF
the scheme which are calculated based on 18% to 20% of the NEAHFEH18%E20%TE -
employee’s basic salaries during the year.
In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws REBIRBEBOH D ERBIERTE
and regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory EOREG - BRFIEGERNE
Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong BEERY —HEFERESFE
Kong employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately ([®ERFE]) - FFEIEERAE
from those of the Group and under the control of an independent BEENAFBE  UHBLBRES
MPF service provider. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, FRISHEREIR - RikaE i3l
the employer and its employees are each required to make RHA - EXRHEEESBELHE
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The A3 E ML R RZET IR - A&
only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is to BEHRESTEMNE—BERER
make the required contributions under the scheme. ZETEEH TR etk -
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 48. LLEREF
Previously, warranty provision expense was classified as part of T2 A RIEBEBRERFE D
distribution and selling expenses in the consolidated statement HER&XEIN R HRHEERZ®
of comprehensive income. Starting from the year ended 31 —HH e c AEE_ZT——-F+=A8
December 2012, the Group, has decided to classify warranty =t+—BI-FERMR  ANEBERTE
provision expense as part of cost of sales in the consolidated PREBEERIEZEFEEEE
statement of comprehensive income. The comparative figures mRVERIBEXNAN—F D - —F
of year 2011 have been reclassified to conform to the current ——FENEBRETEAEIEERN
year's presentation accordingly. D AR FENZNET -
2011
—2-—F 2011
(originally —T——F
stated) Adjustment (restated)
(R5IHE) A (&=E75)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFTT ARBT T
Cost of sales 4 BA 3,350,052 175,964 3,526,016
Distribution and selling expenses SN IHERY 412,124 (175,964) 236,160

~
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49.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 49. E@ARAMBERRERR
OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE REE2BNER
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RS EARAE R - BRAAR R
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: Bk RN ER B
2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Office equipment N 143 182
Investment in subsidiaries R B A TR E 302,489 158,093
Amount due from a subsidiary JEU —E I B A =) 3B 518,233 263,951
820,865 422,226
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR AN R IE I E A R WK IE 919 1,380
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGIE L] 21 -
Bank balances and cash RITEEBR NIE S 231,154 4,039
232,094 5,419
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Other payables HAtbET5IE 947 446
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS —FEI B B R RIFE 91,151 90,480
92,098 90,926
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) RBEE (BE) FE 139,996 (85,507)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 960,861 336,719
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARKHE
Share capital R AN 68,140 68,140
Reserves HiE 328,921 268,579
TOTAL EQUITY s 397,061 336,719
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEMF
Convertible bonds AR ES 563,800 -
960,861 336,719
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49. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 49. EAXAARHBERARE
EESBNER (8)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Convertible Retained
bonds Earnings
equity (accumulated
Share Share reserve losses)
capital premium HBREES R & F 7 Total
BAE  BROEE B REE (REER) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—4%—HA—H 68,140 367,014 - (22,951) 412,203
Profit and total FAMNBREZEYALE
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 4,939 4,939
Dividend declared by RRAEIRRE
the Company - (80,423) - - (80,423)
At 31 December 2011 NZZE——F
+ZA=+—H 68,140 286,591 - (18,012) 336,719
Profit and total FAMBEREZEBALE
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 137,418 137,418
Recognition of equity M7 —Hﬁﬁﬂi%}m
component of 2SI (fisE36)
convertible bonds
(Note 36) - - 59,643 - 59,643
Dividend declared by RRAEEIREE
the Company - (136,719) - - (136,719)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——4F
+ZA=+—H 68,140 149,872 59,643 119,406 397,061
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E-E——F+-A=+—HIFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. MBARIEHR
The particulars of subsidiaries of the Company as at the end of RARIMBARNS®EBEE
each of the reporting periods are set out as follows: R ERIFINT -
Equity interest
Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up share the Company as at
incorporation/ capital/ 31 December
establishment  registered capital b NS
Name of company HEMAEL BRETRBEREX, Wt=ZA=t+-BH Principal activity
NERER RS B EER PEfE IR AR fE S TEEK
2012 2011
ZE2-ZF _T——F
% %
Directly held
HEER
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI US$100 100 100  Investment holding
BHENEEERAR REBERAHE 100% 7T REER
Indirectly held
BEEE
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,000 7T REER
BEBN(ES)ERAF
Chaowei Power Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Research and
Limited 5% 10,0007 7T development
BEBNRHERAR e
BEERERAR (M) PRC RMB1,031,800,000 100 100 Manufacture and
(Chaowei Power Co., Ltd) HE AR sales of motive
(Note i) 1,031,800,0007T batteries
SEREERNED
REZRERBRRF (M) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(Changxing Zhongcheng f ARE batteries
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 50,000,0007T BEEBNEN
AEEHERERAR (M) PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive
(Henan Chaowei Power i AR batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 10,000,0007T BLEHNEN
WRBEHERARAR (&) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(Shandong Chaowei Power Bl AEE batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 100,000,0007T SEBNEM
TEBRERERAF (M) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(Jiangsu Chaowei Power i AR batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 100,000,0007T SEBNED
184 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited BB B W IZR AR A A



50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Issued and fully

Place of paid-up share

50. MIBARER (&)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company as at

incorporation/ capital/ 31 December
establishment  registered capital NG
Name of company EMRL, ERTRMERE W+=-A=+-H Principal activity
NG RS 3 B EMER EiERAER TEEH
2012 2011
B _T——F
% %
ZHRBERERAR () PRC RMB 10,000,000 75 75  Manufacture and sales
(Anhui Chaowei Power B AR of motive batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 10,000,0007¢ and electrode plates
HERHESNE LK
BHR
LB e RER A A PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive
(iED) H AR batteries materials
(Zhejiang Chaowei Power 150,000,0007C HEBNE MM
Energy Co., Ltd.) (Note i)
LRFEE N R AR AR PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(P &%) F AR materials
(Jiangxi Xinwei Power 100,000,0007T SLEE) IR
Technology Co., Ltd.) (Note i)
ZEKEBB HRRBRAA PRC RMB65,500,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive
G H AR batteries
(Anhui Yongheng Power 65,500,0007T B NEMD
Technology Co., Ltd.) (Note i)
TEKEBERBRAA () PRC RMB5,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive
(Jiangsu Yongheng Power H ARE batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 5,000,0007T HEE TN
MMREERERERAA PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(%) H AR batteries
(Huzhou Changguang Haotian 500,0007T FESHNEM

Power Co., Ltd.) (Note i)

~
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 50. FiBAT&ER (&)
Equity interest
Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up share the Company as at
incorporation/ capital/ 31 December
establishment  registered capital ¥ NG|
Name of company Aty BRETRBEREX,/ Wt=A=t+-BH Principal activity
NG B3t B ZMER B RAER TEEH
2012 2011
e
% %
HIRASKBERARAA PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive
(P55 H ARE batteries
(Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang 10,000,0007T SUEE NS
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note i)
Golden Chaowei Technology BVI HK$3,000,000 80 80  Research and
Limited EEERARES 3,000,000 7 development
TRERMERAR fE
WIREEITEEERAT PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive
(PR &ED H AR batteries
(Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan 50,000,0007T SLEB HEM
Industrial Co., Ltd.) (Note i)
LEFKEERRHERAF PRC RMB63,000,000 60 - Manufacture of motive
GEDIGEDD; f AR batteries
(Jiangsu Yongda Power 63,000,0007T SLEE NED
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) (Note ii)
WM AERERAR LA PRC RMB63,240,769 85 - Manufacture of
GEDIE=D) H AR electrode plate
(Qinyang Libiao Plate 63,240,7697C dividing paper
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) (Note ii) BE B HIREIRA
REREBHERDHE PRC RMB40,850,000 51 - Manufacture of plastic
CEDIGEDD) H AR battery cases
(Changxing Yueda Plastic 40,850,0007T BB B
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) (Note ii)
AILEHERER AR PRC RMB120,000,000 100 - Manufacture of motive
(BEi) B aiii) F AR batteries
(Hebei Chaowei Power 120,000,0007T ZUEB) SE
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) (Note iii)
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50.

51.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The English names of these companies are for reference only

and have not been registered.

(ii) Newly acquired during the year ended 31 December 2012.

(iii) Newly established during the year ended 31 December 2012.

(iv) Other than the Convertible Bonds issued by the Company, none
of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 February 2013, Chaowei Power issued a short-term
financing notes (“Financing Notes”) with a principal amount of
RMB400 million and with a term of 365 days in the PRC. The
interest rate of the Financing Notes is 4.90% per annum.

50. MIBARER (&)

51.

Mt

(i) Lt R A A XE T E R
Z . REE -

(ii) REBEE-—FE——Ff+=-F=+
—H IFFERFTYSE -

(i) REEZ_F——F+=-A=++
—HIFFEAFALL

(iv) RN 2 A 77 A A 2 AR (& 5
S BEAENTE L A RFALE
TTIF ] E RS o

HHIREIE

RZE—=F-A=+-H H#
BERRPBRETAZEAAR
#400,000,0007T & 52 B @b & =15
((REZEE]) - AHI365H - G &
FEMENER4.90% °

~
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Financial Summary

MBRERHE

The following table summarizes the consolidated results,assets and

liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December:

TR AKERBERRFN T A=

T—HLEREFENGARE  EERE

EERRE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-CF —E—% CZI-%F “ETNF ZTEN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARE®ETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Results E
Revenue LN 9,559,439 4,932,011 3,224,750 2,433,889 2,316,911
Profit before taxation BRER A0 752,471 710,881 369,918 283,704 179,045
Taxation I (132,537) (121,058) (66,787) (57,657) (35,417)
Profit and total comprehensive FERMERZAKARSE
income for the year 619,934 589,823 303,131 226,047 143,628
Profit attributable to JEE R R A PR (G R
non-controlling interests 123,606 134,485 34,936 24,135 15,521
Profit attributable to owners of the ~ AAEES AT
Company 496,328 455,338 268,195 201,912 128,107
Assets BE
Non-current assets EmBEE 2,879,344 1,525,130 767,670 498,382 287,041
Current assets MEEE 4,238,568 2,996,066 1,919,041 915,585 893,869
Total assets BEE 7,117,912 4,521,196 2,686,711 1,413,967 1,180,910
Liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (868,494) (215,071) (293,567) (175,327) (6,324)
Current liabilities BB E (3,623,230)  (2,304,672) (937,223) (510,895) (661,082)
Total liabilities LEE (4,491,724)  (2,519,743)  (1,230,790) (686,222) (667,406)
Capital and reserves EXRfGEE
Equity attributable to owners of the N EIHA AEEER
Company 2,167,048 1,747,796 1,373,430 680,190 480,941
Non-controlling interests Eei £ 459,140 253,657 82,491 47 555 32,563
Total Equity BiEn 2,626,188 2,001,453 1,455,921 727745 513,504
Current ratio (current assets/current  REILE (REEE,/
liabilities) mEaE) 1.17 1.30 2.05 1.79 1.35
Gearing ratio (total bank borrowings ZARE&EHE (#IRTT
and convertible bonds/total EBERBRES
assets) wEE) 32% 28% 17% 15% 10%
The results of the Group for the two financial years ended 31 December A&EEEHZE—_TZENFR_ZTTNF+=

2008 and 2009 and its assets and liabilities were extracted from the
Prospectus, which also set forth the details of the basis of presentation
of the combined accounts. The result of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 and its assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2012 are set forth on pages 80 to 82, and are presented
on the basis set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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